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Forward-Looking Statements

This release contains forward-looking statements that are based on JR-West's current expectations,
assumplions, estimates and projections about its business, industry, and capital markets around the
world.

These forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties. Generally, these
forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may”
“will” “expect” “anticipate” "plan” or similar words. These statements discuss future expectations, identify
strategies, contain projections of results of operations or of JR-West's financial condition, or state other
forward-looking information.

Known or unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors could cause the actual resulis to differ
materially from those contained in any forward-locking statements. JR-West cannot promise that the
expectations expressed in these forward-looking statements will turn out to be correct. JR-West's actual
results could be materially different from and worse than expectations.

Impontant risks and factors that could cause actual results to be materially different from expectations
include, but are not limited to:

« expenses, liability, loss of revenue or adverse publicity associated with property or casualty losses;
+ economic downturn, deflation and population decreases;
» adverse changes in laws, regulations and government policies in Japan;

= service improvements, price reductions and other strategies undertaken by competitors such as
passenger railway and airfines companies;

« earthquake and other natural disaster risks; and

» failure of computer telecommunications systems disrupting railway or other operations

All forward-looking statements in this release are made as of April 27, 2007 based on information
available o JR-West as of the date April 27, 2007 and JR-West does not undertake to update or revise
any of its forward-looking statements or reflect future events or circumstances.




FLASH REPORT {CONSOLIDATED BASIS)

Company name: West Japan Railway Company

Stock listings: Tokyo Stock Exchange, Osaka Securities Exchange, Nagoya and Fukucka Stock Exchanges

Code number: 9021

Presiclent: Masac Yamazaki

URL: hitp:/fwww. westjr.co.jp

For further information, please contact: Michio Utsunomiya, General Manager, Corporate Communications Department

Telephone; +81-6-6375-8889

Date of the General Meeting of the Shareholders: Late June 2007

(Slated to be decided at the May 2007 Board of Directors Meeting)

Planned filing of an annual security report: Undecided

1. Performance
(1) Operating results
1. Years ended March 31

Planned start of dividend payments: Undecided

(Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted.)

Percentages indicate year-on-year increase/ (decrease).

Operating revenues Operating income Recurring profit Net income
Millions of yen % Millions of yen % Millions of yen % Millions of yen %
2007 1,262,935 1.8 135,341 0.1 104,154 1.9 56,791 22.1
2008 1,240,098 1.6 135,218 1.6 102,181 6.5 46,525 (21.1)
Net ir;;:\gr:;e per Sh’i?;iggg:":;‘ilﬁggn Return on equity proﬁtﬁs-ig;gpagssels incorr%?for-?;e%gting
ratio revenues ratio
Yen Yen % % %
2007 28,415.07 — 9.7 4.4 107
2006 23,281.96 — 8.5 43 109

(Reference) Gain {Loss) on investment by equity method: Year ended March 31, 2007: ¥1,016 million,
Year ended March 31, 2006: ¥1,214 million

{2) Financial position

At Mzrch 31 (Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted.)
Total assets Net assets Equity ratio Net assets per share
Millions of yen Millions of yen % Yen
2007 2,401,687 637,849 253 303,906.52
2006 2,355,989 564,254 23.9 282,245.00

(Reference) Total shareholders’ equity; March 31, 2007: ¥607 544 million, March 31, 2006: —

(3) Cash flows
Years ended March 31

(Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted.)

Cash flows from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities

Cash flows from
financial activities

Cash and cash
equivaients at end of year

Millions of yen

Millions of yen

Millions of yen

Millions of yen

2007

188,618

(131,776)

{54,690}

57,584

2008

164,080

(101,765)

(69,397)

55,433




2, Dividends
Years ended/ending March 31

L Total amount of
Dividends per share dividends Payout | Dividends-to-
Interim Year-end Total (for the entire ratio net assets ratio
dividends dividends fiscal year)
Record date Yen Yen Yen Million of yen % %
2007 3,000.00 3,000.00 6,000.00 12,000 25.8 22
2006 3,000.00 3,000.00 6,000.00 12,000 211 20
2008 3,000.00 3,000.00 6,000.00 21.9
(Forecast)

3. Forecasts for Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2008

Percentages indicate year-on-year increase/ (decrease).

Operating revenues Operating income Recurring profit
Millions of yen % Millicns of yen % Millions of yen %
Interim period 627,200 1.5 74,100 (3.2) 57,200 (2.4)
Fiscal year 1,285,000 1.7 129,200 (4.5) 98,500 (5.4)
Net income Net income per share
Millions of yen % Yen
Interim period 31,500 (0.8) 15,756.97
Fiscal year 54,800 (3.5) 2741213
4. Other

1. Significant changes in subsidiaries during the subject fiscal year (Transfer of particular subsidiaries following a2

change in the scope of consolidation): None

2. Changes in accounting rules, procedures or method of presentation relating to the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements {Matters included in changes to significant items that form the basis for

preparation of the consolidated financial statements).

a. Changes in accordance with revisions to accounting standards: Yes

b. Other changes: None

3. Number of Shares Qutstanding (Common stock)

Number of shares outstanding at fiscal year-end:

2007:

2,000,000 shares

2008:

Number of treasury stocks at fiscal year-end:

2007:

885 shares

20086:

2,000,000 shares

885 shares

4. Dividend payments for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, upon approval at a meeting of the Company's

Board of Directors in May, will be submitted as a propaesition during the Genera! Meeting of Shareholders to be

held in June.




(Reference) FLASH REPORT (NON-CONSOLIDATED BASIS)
1. Performance

(1) Operating results
Years ended March 31

Percentages indicate year-on-year increase/f (decrease).

Operating revenues Operating income Recurring profit Net income
Millions of yen % Miltions of yen % Millions of yen % Millions of yen %
2007 865,810 1.7 108,966 {0.0) 77,686 2.2 44 683 27.2
2008 851,280 06 108,978 (1.0) 75,989 22 35140  (26.8)

Nel income per share Net income per share after

dilution
Yen Yen
2007 22,341.69 —
2008 17,570.30 -
{2} Financial position
At March 31 (Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted.)
Total assets Net assets Equity ratio Net assets per share
Millions of yen Millions of yen % Yen
2007 2,151,875 533,320 248 266,660.13
2006 2,102,166 502,229 23.9 251,114.87

{Reference) Total shareholders' equity: March 31, 2007: ¥533,320 million, March 31, 2006: —

2. Forecasts for Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2008

Percentages indicate year-on-year increasef (decrease).

Operating revenues Operating income Recurring profit

Millions of yen % Millions of yen % Millions of yen
Interim period 431,000 0.4 64,000 (3.9) 47,000 {(4.5)
Fiscal year 869,500 04 102,000 (6.4) 71,000 (8.6)
Net income Net income per share
Millions of yen % Yen
Interim period 27.000 (2.2) 13,500.00
Fiscal year 42,000 (6.0) 21,000.00

The forward-looking statements made in this document, including the aforementioned forecasts, are based on all

information available to the management at the time of this document's release. Actual results may differ from the results

anticipated in the statements.



QUALITATIVE INFORMATION RELATED TO BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

1. Analysis of Business Performance

{1) Overview of Results for the Subject Period

On April 25, 2005, the Company caused an extremely serious accident when one of its trains derailed
betwzen Tsukaguchi and Amagasaki stations on the Fukuchiyama Line, resulting in 106 fatalities and
more than 500 injuries of passengers. Since the accident JR-West has exerted its full effort to support
the bereaved families and all those who were victims of the accident. These efforts included the holding
of a memorial ceremony, as well as briefing sessions to report on the progress of our Safety
Enhancement Plan and other measures.

In accordance with our determination that such an accident will never occur again, we newly
formulated a Corporate Philosophy showing the cause and the value to pursue as a corporate entity,
along with a Safety Charter identifying practical guidelines for safety, and have made a concerted effort
to ensure that these are fully understood and put into practice by all employees. Especially, regarding
the issue of safety enhancement that is the most important management issue, we have worked to
steadily implement our Safety Enhancement Plan that covers both the human and technology aspects of
our operations, and in according with revisions to the Railway Business Law enacted in October 2006
have newly formulated a Railway Safety Management Manual, and worked to establish a Safety
Management System. In addition, we have made revisions to the group medium-term management
targets formulated in March 2005, setting as our highest management goal the building of a corporate
culture that places a top priority on safety, and have implemented a variety of measures aimed at
achieving these goals.

We also increased the number of external directors in June 2008, and made other efforts to
further enhance supervision and oversight functions related to the conduct of business operations.

Through these efforts JR-West has devoted its full effort to enhancing safety in its mainstay
transportation business, while in other Group operations has developed a variety of measures that draw
on the unique characteristics of each business and effectively utilize their assets.

As a result, on a consolidated basis, operating revenues for the subject fiscal year rose 1.8%
over the previous year to ¥1,262.9 billion, with operating income up 0.1% to ¥135.3 billion. Recurring
profit increased 1.9% to ¥104.1 billion, with net income up 22.1% to ¥56.7 bilfion.

{2) Results by Business Segment

Transportation Operations

In the railway business, the Company concentrated on implementing its Safety Enhancement Plan and
various other measures aimed at building a corporate culture that places top priority on safety. Specific
measures included efforts to foster an attitude of prioritizing safety through regular convening of safety
meetings to allow management and officers on the one hand and employees in the field on the other to
directly exchange opinions, along with analysis of the nature of the potential causes of accidents and

mattzrs for concern reported by employees in workplaces. The authorization process for safety-related




investment was also revised in order to allow for more flexible implementation of capital expenditure
policies necessary for safety measures. We have expanded and enhanced training for train conductors
usings simulators, computer-aided instruction (CAl) for station staff engaged in transportation, and made
other efforts to bolster structures for providing effective safety education. Comprehensive training for
train accidents has also been conducted with the aim of enhancing response capabilities in the event of
an accident, such as in the area of cooperation with rescue crews, police and other authorities. In terms
of facilities, the Company has expanded the area of tracks with both the ATS-SW and ATS-P automatic
train stop systems that prevent trains from exceeding speed limits at points and other portions of track.
We have also worked to strengthen pillars supporting elevated tracks against earthquakes, increased
the number of anemometers to help counter strong winds, and upgraded the train proximity warning
system as means of helping protect workers from train collisions. Further, based on the
recommendations of the Safety Consultative Committee, which is made up of third-party experts, in June
2006 we established a Safety Research Institute dedicated to research on safety and reiated matters,
and took other necessary actions. The proposals, measures implemented and record of discussions by
the committee were published in the Interim Report.

In transportation operations, JR-West expanded the coverage area for the operations
management system and made other efforts to enhance safe and reliable transportation services. For
conventional lines, in October 2006 we completed work to convert the etectric supply from AC to DC of
the Hokuriku Line and the Kosei Line in order to permit extension of special rapid service to Tsuruga
Station. Timetables were revised in March 2007, including the opening of the Sakura Shukugawa Station.
On the Sanyo Shinkansen line, the timetable revision in March 2006 added more Nozomi trains
providing direct service from Hakata and Hiroshima to Tokyo, which along with other measures resulted
in a steady rise in passengers, prompting the Company to operate special trains, and make efforts to
further enhance convenience. The Company did suffer some negative impact as a result of natural
disasters, including heavy rains along the Geibi and Sanko lines in July 2006 that led to delays, as well
as rcck slides along the Tsuyama Line in November that caused a derailment.

Sales and marketing initiatives included expansion of the Express Reservation system—which
allows passengers to easily make or change Shinkansen reservations through a computer or mabile
telephone—to all of the Tokaido and Sanyo Shinkansen lines. Other efforts to make Shinkansen lines
more: convenient included frequent postings of basic information on Shinkansen services, such as
number of trains, time required, and fares. To increase the number of cardholders of the J-WEST Card
necessary to use the Express Reservation system, we conducted PR and other campaigns to highlight
the privileges of membership. Further, we worked in cooperation with local municipalities, travel agents
and other JR companies to develop strategies for the DISCOVER WEST and other travel campaigns,
and stimulate demand for tourism. We also launched the travel association Club DISCOVER WEST for
persons over 50 years of age, in an effort to stimulate demand for travel.

As part of our customer service initiatives we increased the number of Green Ticket Vending
Machines, as well as installed elevators, escalators and other barrier-free facilities. Initiatives to make
railways more user-friendly included the expansion of the Lost Articles Management System, which has
been in operation in the Kyoto-Osaka-Kobe area, and is designed to provide quick responses to inquiries
regarding lost articles, to the Okayama, Hiroshima, and Fukuoka regions. We also steadily installed




autornatic external defibrillator (AED) systems at major stations, and conducted courses in life-saving for
station staff and other personnel.

In terms of technology development, the Company placed priority on such areas as ensuring
safety and enhancing service. We developed a GPS-based train proximity warning system used as a
back-up system to prevent accidents caused by human error, as well as a passenger guidance system
for use by station staff to help improve service to customers.

In response to environmental issues, JR-West conducted environmental management based
on relevant laws and regulations in cooperation with all Group companies, as well as made other efforts
to lower the environmental burden, including introducing energy-efficient rail cars, and reducing the
amount of waste. We also published an environmental report.

In ferry services, the Company worked to establish safety management systems based on the
Marine Safety Management Manual, with the aim of providing safe and reliable transport.

In bus services, the Company made efforts aimed at further ensuring safety, including
equipping vehicles with safety devices, and enhancing employee training. Also, with competition for
highway bus services becoming more intense, we strengthened our marketing capabilities with full-scale
operation of the Highway Bus Net, an Internet reservation service. We also began operating the Youth
Mega Dream Bus, and took other steps to provide services to respond to the varied needs of customers.

As a result, operating revenues for Transportation Operations increased 1.7% over the
previous fiscal year, to ¥864.9 biltion. Operating income, however, decreased 0.8%, to ¥97.2 billion.

Sales of Goods and Food Services
JR-West continued to move forward with its NexStation Plan designed to improve the quality of stations.
We also opened new style Kiosk stands and small convenience stores “Daily in”, developed original
products, and made efforts to stimulate sales at existing stores. Further, we opened the Dessert Terrace,
a collection of well-known dessert shops, in Osaka Station, and took other measures to enhance retail
operations within stations. For the JR Kyofo Isetan department store we took steps to increase
profitability, including a freshening up of the sales floors to reflect the change in the seasons, and further
expanding our lineup of unique products.

As a result, operating revenues in the Sales of Goods and Food Services segment rose 3.2%
from the previous year to ¥252.1 billion. Operating income, however, was down 15.2% to ¥5.0 billion.

Real Estate Business
JR-West continued to develop station premises and surrounding areas during the subject fiscal year.
The “bridge station building” (a type of station with ticket gates and other station facilities above the
tracks) was opened in Okayama Station, along with the SUN STATION TERRACE OKAYAMA, a
shopping center facing the walk-through linking the east and west sides of the station. The JR Kanazawa
Station NK Building was also opened across from Kanazawa Station, attracting a large-scale shopping
center as a tenant.

The Company also developed condominium apartments con land formerly used for housing for
Company employees, and made other efforts to effectively utilize assets. The plan for renovation of




Osaka Station and the development of the New North Building is steadily moving forward, with
consiruction begun on the New North Building.

Three group companies in the Hyogo Prefecture area, managing station building, were merged
and consolidated in order to allow for swift and accurate responses to such changes in the business
environment as intensified competition, and diversification of consumer needs.

As a result, operating revenues for the Real Estate segment rose 0.4% from the previous year

to ¥76.0 billion, with operating income up 3.5%, to ¥21.2 billion.

Other Businesses
In travel agency operations, JR-West undertook aggressive marketing measures that included
enhancing the Red Balloon Centennial product established to mark the 100th anniversary of Nippon
Travel Agency, and a strengthening of sales via the Internet. In hotel operations, the Company promoted
sales with renovations to its banquet halls and guest rooms, along with various events organized by the
banguet and culinary divisions.

As a result, operating revenues in the Other Businesses segment increased 7.2% from the
previous fiscal year to ¥300.3 billion, with operating income climbing 9.2%, to ¥12.5 billion.

(3) Outlock

While the operating environment will be challenging, JR-West will seek to enhance its corporate value by
maximizing its management resources, while keeping fixedly in mind the basic principle of prioritizing
safely.

Current forecasts for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008, are as follows:

Operating revenues ¥1,285.0 billion
Operating income ¥129.2 billion
Recurring profit ¥98.5 billion
Net income ¥54 .8 billion

2. Financial Position

(1) Cash flows from operating activities

Cash provided by operating activities amounted to ¥188.6 billion, a rise of ¥24.5 billion from the same
period of the previous fiscal year. The main factor affecting cash was an increase in income before
income taxes adjustments.

(2) Cash flows from investing activities
Cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥131.7 billion, a rise of ¥30.0 billion from the same period
of the previous fiscal year. The main factor affecting cash was purchases of property, plant and

equipment.




(3) Cash flows from financing activities

Cash used in financing activities amounted to ¥54.6 biltion, a decrease of ¥14.7 billion from the previous
fiscal year. The main factors affecting cash were repayment of long-term debt of ¥38.1 billion and
payment of cash dividends.

As a result, cash and cash equivalents at end of this fiscal year increased ¥2.1 billion to ¥57.5 billion.

(Reference) Cash Flow Indicators

Years ended March 31

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Equity ratio (%) 18.1 19.9 222 239 253
Equity ratio, based on market
value (%) 30.8 346 36.9 42.2 45.3
Iinterest-bearing debt to cash
flow ratio (%) 9.1 8.0 74 6.1 51
Interest coverage ratio (Times) 2.5 2.8 3.1 3.4 36

Notes:
Equity ratio: shareholders’ equity/ total assets
Market-based rate of equity ratio: total market capitalization/ total assets
Interest-bearing debt to cash flow ratio: interest-bearing debt/ operating cash flows

Interest coverage ratio: (operating income + interest & dividend income)/ interest expense

Notes:
1. All of the figures in the above table were calculated on a consolidated basis.
2. Total market capitalization was calculated by multiplying the closing stock price at the end of the
term by the total amount of outstanding stock at the end of the term (excluding treasury stock).
3. Cash flow is defined as operating cash flow.
Interest-bearing debt is defined as interest-bearing debt of long-term debt and payables.

3. Basic Policy Regarding Distribution of Earnings

JR-West's basic policy is to emphasize sustained, stable dividend payments while securing adequate
internal capital reserves to maintain a solid and stable management foundation that will continue into the
future. _

Regarding the specific policy for dividends, as previously announced the Company plans to pay
annual dividends of ¥6,000 per share through the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009. This policy has
been formulated in accordance with shareholders’ equity, the status of iong-term debt, and other aspects
of our capital structure, and on the premise that we can secure sustained and stable growth in operating
revenues.

For the subject fiscal year, the Company has paid an interim dividend of ¥3,000 per share, and
plans to pay a year-end dividend of ¥3,000 per share.




2. MANAGEMENT POLICIES

On Aprit 25, 2005, an extremely serious accident between Tsukaguchi and Amagasaki stations on the
Fukuchiyama Line resulted in 106 fatalities and injuries to more than 500 passengers.

We pray for all the victims of the accident and offer our sincerest apologies to their bereaved
families. We would also like to express our deepest sympathies and sincerest apologies to the injured,
and hope they recover as soon as possible.

We further offer deep apologies to passengers, shareholders and local residents for the
excessive strain and trouble that we have caused.

JR-West, in accordance with its Corporate Philosophy and Safety Charter, has steadily
implemented its Safety Enhancement Plan aimed at fostering a corporate culture that places a top
priority on safety. We have also established a Safety Management System, and made other concerted

efforts to provide a safe and reliable railway service, and regain the trust of customers and society.

1. Basic Management Policies

The JR-West Group will work together as a group to foster a corporate culture which places a top priority
on safety, concentrating on its core business of railway operations. We will further seek to regain trust as
quickly as possible, and pursue sustainable development as a corporate group.

The JR-West Group, with railway operations as its core business, is engaged in sales of goods
and jood services, real estate and other businesses aimed at providing services mainly to railway
passengers, as well as efficient utilization of assets in the vicinity of railway stations. In its business
development, the Company works to strengthen its sense of unity, as well as effectively utilize its
business assets and otherwise further strengthen its management foundation as a means of attaining
sustainable development and enhancement of corporate value as a group.

Going forward, JR-West will continue to strive to improve its corporate value by accurately
identifying market trends, providing high-quality services and products which customers repeatedly
select with confidence, and implementing various measures in a strategic and timely manner. Amid a
difficult operating environment, these efforts will be made in accordance with the Corporate Philosophy
and Safety Charter, and founded on the principle of safety as a priority.

2. Medium-Term Management Strategy and Targets

The JR-West Group revised its medium-term management targets for the fiscal year ending March 31,
2009, in October 2006. We set the goal of establishing a “corporate culture of placing top priority on
safety” as a management target, and, based on our Corporate Philosophy and Safety Charter, have
designated as vital management issues such goals as providing a “response to the victims of the
accident in all sincerity” and “promotion of measures to enhance safety,” which we have made a full
effort to achieve.
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Numerical targets for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009, were set as follows:

Consclidated return on assets (ROA) (operating income basis): 5.8%
Consolidated return on equity {(ROE) (net income basis): 8.4%
Consolidated operating revenues: ¥1,275 billion
Transportation revenues: ¥767.5 billion

3. Management Issues

JR-West lost a considerable amount of the trust it had established among customers and society
following the extremely serious accident it caused on April 25, 2005, when a train derailed between
Tsukaguchi and Amagasaki stations on the Fukuchiyama Line.

We maintain our commitment to helping those who have suffered as a result of the accident,
and will continue to devote our full effort to respond sincerely to their needs and feelings.

We continue to cooperate fully with the investigation being conducted by the Aircraft and
Railway Accident Investigation Commission of the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and Transport. We will
gravely accept whatever is presented in the commission’s report, and make an appropriate response.

JR-West has made redoubling its efforts with regard to prioritizing safety, and recovering the
trust of customers and society its highest business priority. We recognize that we must, as a Group,
provide a beneficial service to society, and establish a solid foundation to ensure susfainable growth,
built on providing a safe, high-quality, trusted transportation service.

In accordance with this fundamental recognition, JR-West is making sure that its newly
formulated Corporate Philosophy and Safety Charter are understood and followed by all employees. We
are also further stepping up our focused efforts to improve safety and recovery trust, in order to realize
the status of our group medium-term business plan, “No accident to produce casualties among our
customers,” and “No serious labor accident to our employees.” Further, as we approach the 20th
anniversary of our launch as a private company, we are working to formulate a new vision for the new
age, and will implement reforms stretching from the awareness of employees to general operations.

In the railway business, in accordance with the steady implementation of the Safety
Enhancement Plan, and based on a recognition of the need to achieve the management goal of
fostering a corporate culture that places a top priority on safety, we wili continue to install ATS and other
safety equipment, and seek to become the *Only-One Corporate Group the Rigorously Performs Safety
Checks by Pointing and Call,” working to make certain that this basic action, which is an important
activity to ensuring safety, is routinely followed. The Company is also focusing on such measures to
improve safety as strengthening its safety training by utilizing the Railway Safety Education Center,
established with a grave recognition of the importance of never forgetting the accident as time goes by.
We are also working to establish safety management systems based on the Railway Safety
Management Manual that include monitoring for safety, identifying important issues, and making
improvements.

In July 2007, with the aim of creating a unified planning and operational structure for the
Shinkansen business, JR-West will establish within the Railway Operations Headquarters the
Shinkansen Supervising Department, along with the Shinkansen Management Division, which functions
as a branch office for Shinkansen-related sites.
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In transportation operations, JR-West is working to provide a safe, trusted and high-quality
transportation service amid a harsh competitive environment, including timetable revisions for
conventional lines conducted in March 2007, and planned timetable revisions for the Sanyo Shinkansen
line in July 2007 that will include introduction of the new N700 series trains. We will continue with the
DISCOVER WEST campaign, and through the development of the travel association Club DISCOVER
WEST for persons over 50 years of age, pursue initiatives in cooperation with local agencies to draw
attention to the Kyoto area. Also, a Customer Service Department has been established within the
Markeating Division to enhance the level of service overall, from customer services to station and train
facilities. We will increase the number of Green Ticket Vending Machines, conduct employee training
aimed at improving sales capabilities, upgrade ‘“barrier-free” facilities in cooperation with local
municipalities, and make other efforts to create user-friendly stations. We will also work to enhance
customer service through greater use of IT, including promoting use of the Express Reservation system,
introducing ICOCA in the Okayama and Hiroshima regions, and renovating JR Odekake Net, our
homepage providing a wide range of information.

In the areas of sales of goods and food services and real estate, to enhance the appeal of
staticns and gain the trust of customers we will move forward with development plans, renovate the hotel
and department store at the Kyoto Station Building to mark its 10th anniversary, as well as upgrade and
expand facilities within stations and at surrounding sites. Regarding the renovation of Osaka Station and
development plan for the New North Building, we will continue with the construction of the New North
Building begun in October 2006, make preparations for the expansion of ACTY OSAKA, and steadily
pursue other measures. Also, to enhance convenience for customers using the ICOCA e-money service,
we will increase the number of affiliated stores, and continue to actively pursue alliances with other
companies. Further, in July 2007, in order to strengthen its strategy, JR-West will restructure its
Corporate Resource Development Headquarters as the Business Development Headquarters, and
further strengthen other initiatives.

With regard to the pursuit of corporate social responsibility (CSR), JR-West recognizes the
importance of and is further implementing CSR, centering on its CSR Promotion Committee. We will also
pursue measures that include the establishment of proper business operations for all business activities
in general, led by the Compliance Committee and Crisis Management Committee. Also, we will further
enhance our internal control functions in preparation for the evaluation and auditing system for internal

controls for financial reporting, which will be required from fiscal 2008.
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3. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Consolidated Balance Sheets

March 31 (Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted. )
Millions of yen
2007 2006 Change from the
previous year
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash 57,814 56,093 1,721

Notes and accounts receivable-trade 19,069 19,095 (26)

Railway fares receivable 22,667 15,432 7,235

Accounts receivable 51,605 47,328 4277

Marketable securities - 3 (3)

Inventories 19,379 17,939 1,439

Defemed tax assets 18,679 19,426 (747)

Other current assets 37,281 32,891 4,390

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (397) {351) (45)
Total current assets 226,100 207,859 18,241

Fixed assets.

Property, plant and equipment: 1,973,146 1,950,880 22,266
Buildings and structures 967,045 981,711 5334
Machinery and transport equipment 254 147 250,498 3,648
Land | 658,519 655,311 3,207
Construction in progress 66,296 59,442 6,853
Other property, plant and equipment 27,138 23,916 3,221

Intangible fixed assets 22,197 22,292 (94)

Investments and other assets: 180,139 174,894 5,244
Investments in securities 64,847 65,027 (179)
Daferred tax assets 92 698 88,022 4 676
Other investments and assets 23,253 22,552 700
Less allowance for doubtful accounts {660} (708) 47

Total fixed assets 2,175,484 2,148,067 27,416
Deferred assets 82 42 40
Total assets 2,401,667 2,355,969 45,698
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March 31

(Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted.)

Millions of yen

Change from the

2007 2008 .
previous year
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Notes and accounts payable-trade 50,272 46,157 4,114
Short-term loans 13,137 14,445 (1,307)
Current portion of long-term debt 49,352 88,904 (39,551)
urrent portion of long-term payal r isition of
crai!waypproperties ’ payables for acquistio 36,530 36,139 391
Current portion of long-term accounts payable 31 31 -—
Accounts payabte 124,567 105,110 19,456
Accrued consumption tax 5,312 3,272 2,039
Accrued income tax 21,713 30,239 (8,525)
Railway deposits received 7,764 1,810 5,954
Deposits received 66,601 60,390 6,211
Prepaid railway fares received 30,507 30,503 3
Advances received 56,475 53,068 3,406
Deferred tax liabilities 198 — 198
Allowance for bonuses 34,348 34,355 {7}
Allowance for compensation of completion of construction 51 44 7
Allowance for loss on restructuring of subsidiary -— 259 (259)
Other current liabilities 31,890 36,413 (4,522)
Total current liabilities 528,757 541,148 {12,391}
Fixed liabilities:
Bonds 249,981 220,000 29,981
Long-termn debt 223,211 215,663 7.547
Long-term payables for acquisition of railway properties 427,372 463,857 (36,484)
Long-term accounts payable 316 348 (31)
Deferred tax liabilities 113 76 37
Accrued retirement benefits 219,693 201,677 18,016
Allowance for antiseismic reinforcement measures 9,931 14,400 (4,468)
Allowance for environmental safety measures 7,426 7,543 (116)
Negative goodwil] 238 262 (24)
Other long-term liabilities 96,773 98,968 (2,194)
Total long-term liabilities 1,235,060 1,222,797 12,262
Total liabilities 1,763,817 1,763,945 (128)
Minority interest --- 27,769 -
Sharcholders’ equity:
Common stock 100,000 -
Capital surplus 55,000 —
Retained earnings - 398,910 -—
Net unrealized holding gain on securities 10,670 —
Treasury stock, at cost --- (327) -
Total shareholders' equity s 564,254 -
Total liabilities, minority interest, and shareholders’ equity - 2,355,969 -
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Millions of yen

Change from the

2007 2006 previous year

NET ASSETS
Total shareholders’ equity: 598,331 — —
Common stock 100,000 —
Capital surplus 55,000 -
Retained earnings 443,658 - —
Treasury stock, at cost (327) - —
Vajuation and translation adjustments: 9,212 -
Net unrealized holding gain on securities 8.864 - -
Deferred gains or iosses on hedges 348 .-
Minority interests 30,305 - -
Total net assets 637,849 - —
Total liabilities and net assets 2,401,667 — —
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2. Consolidated Statements of Income

Years ended March 31

(Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted)

Miliions of yen

Change from the
previous year

Operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Transportation, other services and cost of sales

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating income

Non-cperating revenues:
Interest and dividend income received
Equity in earnings of affiliates

Other

Non-operating expenses:
Interest expense

Other

Recurring profit

Extraordinary profits:
Gain on contributions received for construction
Cornpensation for expropriation
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets

Cther

Extraordinary losses:

Loss on deduction of contributions received for
construction from acquisition costs of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on reduction entry of compensation for
expropriation

Provision of allowance for antiseismic reinforcernent
measures

Provision of allowance for environmental safety measures

Other

Income before income taxes and minority interests
Income taxes:
Current
Deferred
Minority interests

Net income

2007 2006
1,262,935 1,240,098
919,294 899,513
208,299 205,367
1,127,593 1,104,880
135,341 135,218
331 372
1,016 1,214
5,769 5,879
7,117 7,466
37,298 39,799
1,006 704
18,304 40,503
104,154 102,181
31,714 58,724
2,514 4,391
9,993 8,971
3,106 6,507
47,328 78,594
31,076 58,328
2,513 4,388
— 14,400
- 7,543
17.021 16,220
50,610 100,880
100,872 79,898
44,320 50,280
{2,816) {19,308)
2,576 2,396
56,791 46,525

22,837

18,781
2,932
22,7113
123

(40}
(198)
{110)
(349)

(2,500)
302
(2,198)
1,973

(27,009)
{1.8786)
1,021
(3,401}
(31,266)

(27,252)

(1,874)
(14.400)
(7.543)
800
(50,269)
20,976

(5.959)
16,480

180
10,265
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3. Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Consolidated Statements of Retained
Earnings

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Year ended March 31, 2007 (Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted.)

Millions of yen
X : Valuation and translation
Shareholders’ equity .
adjustments
T N? g Deferred Minority | Total net
reasu unrealize: .
Common | Capitai | Retained v ) gains or interests |  assets
. stock, at Total holding Total
stock surplus eamings i losses on
cost gain on
L hedges
securilies
233:;""9 at March 31, 100,000 | 55000 | 398910 @327y | 553,583 | 10,670 — | 10670 | 27.769 | 592,023
Change in year ended
March 31, 2007
Divicends from surplus (12,000} {12,000) {12,000)
Net income 86,791 56,791 56,791
Dewiease due to the
merger of consolidated (43) (43) {43)
subsidiaries
Net increase/decrease
dur.mg the terrr'l under (1,806) 348 | (1,458) 2,536 1,078
review except in
shareholders' equity
Total 44,748 44,748 | (1,806} 4B | (1,458) 2,536 45,826
I

2;037”“ at March 31, 100,000 | 55,000 | 443,658 (327) | 598,331 | 8864 348 | 9212 | 30,305 | 637,849

Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings

Year ended March 31

(Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted.)

Millions of yen
2008
Capital surplus at beginning of the period 55,000
Capital surplus at the end of the period 55,000
Retained earnings at beginning of the period 365,303
Increase in retained earnings: 46,740
Net income 46,525
Increase in retained earnings due to a merger 215
between a consolidated subsidiary and an affiliate
Appropriations of retained eamnings: 13,134
Cash dividends 13,000
Directors’ bonuses 92
[Including corporate auditors’ bonuses) [6]
Increase in the number of consclidated subsidiaries a4
Retained earning s at the end of the period 398,910
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4. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended March 31 (Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted)

Millions of yen
2007 2006 Change from the
previous year
I. Cash flows from operating activities
Income before income taxes and minority interests 100,872 79,896 20,976
Depreciation and amortization 112,827 111,900 926
Loss on deduction of contributions received for
construction from acquisition costs of property, plan and 31,076 58,328 (27,252)
equipment
Loss on disposal of property, plan and equipment 12,692 13,368 (676)
Change in allowance for retirement benefits 18,016 1,711 16,304
Change in allowance for accrued bonuses (7) (1,625} 1,618
Change in other reserves {4,649) 22,212 (26,861)
interest and dividend income (331) (372) 40
Interest expenses 37,298 39,799 {2.500)
Equity in earnings of affiliates (1,016) {1,214) 198
Gain on contributions received for construction (31,714) (58,724) 27,009
Change in notes and accounts receivable (10,731) (8,476) (2,254)
Change in inventories {1,439) (2,159) 719
Change in notes and accounts payable 20,738 (12,877) 33,615
Change in accrued consumption tax 2,035 (821) 2.861
Other (7.053) 9,238 {16,291}
Subtotal 278,617 250,184 28,433
interest and dividends income received 265 373 {108)
Interest paid (37,398) (40,271) 2,873
Income taxes paid (52,865} (46,205) (6,660)
Net cash provided by operating activities 188,618 164,080 24,637
Ii. Cash flows from investing activities
Z‘?zgfnnownl;osr time deposits with a maturity of more than (335) (12.160) 11.825
;rg:ee;%sntfs; time deposits with a maturity of more than 765 12.160 (11,395)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (175,024) {156,155} (18,868}
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 4272 4172 100
Contributions received for constructions 41,858 42,899 (1,041)
Increase in investments in securities (1,961) (513) (1,447)
Payments on long-term loans receivable (689) (282) (407)
Collections of long-term loans receivable 266 10,396 (10,130)
Other {928} (2,282) 1,354
Net cash used in investing activities {131,776) (101,765) {30,010)
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Millions of yen

2007 2006 Change from the
previous year

Ill. Cash flows from financing activities

Change in short-term loans 2,139 2,863 (724)

Proceeds from long-term loans 57,100 12,300 44 800

Repayment of long-term debt (89,135} (30,983) (58,152)

Proceeds from issuance of bonds 29,981 —_ 29,981

Repayment of long-term payables for acquisition of

railway properties (36,093) (38,425} 2,332

Cash dividends paid to the Company's shareholders {12,002} (13,001) 098

Cash dividends paid to minority shareholders of

consolidated subsidiaries (112) (12) 0

Other (6,566) (2,038) (4,527)
Net cash used in financing activities {54,690) (69,397) 14,707
IV. Change in cash and cash equivalents, net 2,151 (7,083) 9,234
V. C::i:oadnd cash equivalents at the beginning of the 55,433 62,241 (6,807)
VI. Change in cash and cash equivalents

accompanying consolidation of additional - 275 (275)
subsidiaries

VIi. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 57,584 55,433 2,151
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5. Retirement Benefits for Employees

1. Overview of the Retirement Benefits System Adopted by the Company
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have established defined benefit plans,

consisting of a qualified pension plan and a retirement lump-sum payment plan. Certain consolidated
subsidiaries have a funded defined contribution pension plan administered by a government agency. n

addition, premium severance pay may be available for retiring employees.

2. Retirement Benefit Obligation (March 31, 2007)

Millions of yen

(1) Retirement benefit obligation {376,375)
(2) Plan assets at fair value 11,843
{3) Unfunded retirement benefit obligation {(1) + (2)] (364,431)
{4) Unrecognized net retirement benefit cbligation at transition 99,283
(5) Unrecognized actuarial loss 48,009
(6} Unrecognized prior service cost (2,235)
{7} Net retirement benefit obligation {(3) + (4) + (5) + (6)) {219,375}
(8) Prepaid pension cost 318
{9) Accrued retirement benefits [(7) — (8)] (Note) (219,693}

Note: Some subsidiaries adopt the simplified method in calculating retirement benefit obligations.
3. Retirement Benefit Expenses (Year ended March 31, 2007)

Millions of yen

{1) Service cost 15,852
(2) Interest cost 7,932
(3) Expected return on plan assets (254)
{4) Amortization of net retirement benrefit cbligation at transition 31,458
{5) Amortization of actuarial loss 7.291
(6) Amortization of prior service cost 1,975
(7) Total [(1) +(2) + (3) + (4) + (5)] 64,245

Note: Retirement benefit expanses of consolidated subsidiaries which adopt the simplified method are
stated in (1) Service cost.

4. Items related to Basis for Calculation of Retirement Benefit Obligation

{1) Method allocating projected retirement benefits over period Straight-line standards
(2) Discount rates Mainly 2.0%

(3) Expected rate of return on plan assets Mainly 2.5%

(4) Amortization period of net obligation at transition Mainly 10 years
(5) Amortization period of actuarial gain or loss Mainly 10 years

Mainly amortized in the year

(6) Amortization period of prior service occurred
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6. Tax-Effect Accounting

1. Breakdown and Principal Sources of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

March 31, 2007

Millions of yen
Deferrad tax assets
Accrued bonuses included in accrued expenses 14,010
Accrued enterprise tax included in accrued income taxes 1,931
Accrued retirement benefits 89,236
Unrealized gain on property, plant and equipment 6,698
Tax loss carryforwards 207
Others 23,415
Subtotal 135,499
Valuation allowance (5.444)
Total 130,055
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealized holding gain on securities (5,702)
Contributions for constryction deducted from acquisition costs of (11.313)
property, plant and equipment
Gain on valuation of assets of consolidated subsidiaries (1,443)
Others {530)
Total {18,989)
Deferred tax assets, net 111,065

(Note) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, net are included in the following
items on the consolidated balance sheet.

Millions of yen

Current assets -— Deferred tax assets 18,679
Fixed assets -— Deferred tax assets 92,698
Current liabilities — Deferred tax liabilities 198
Fixed liabilities -— Deferred tax liabilities 113

2. Difference in the Burden of Corporate and Other Taxes between the Statutory Tax Rate and after
Application of Tax-Effect Accounting

The presentation of corresponding information has been omitted because the difference between the

statutory tax rate and the effective tax rates was less than five percent of the statutory tax rate.
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7. Segment Information

1. Information by business segment

Year ended March 31, 2006 (April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)

Millions of yen
Sales of Eliminations
Transportation goods and Real estate Cther Total and Consolidated
food services intergroup
Operating revenues
and income:
Operating revenues
from third parties 834,537 203,942 62,884 138,734 | 1,240,098 — 1,240,098
Intergroup operating
revenues and transfers 16,308 40,532 12,818 141,503 211,162 | (211,162) —
Total sales 850,846 244 474 75,702 280,238 | 1,451,261 (211,162) 1,240,098
Operating expenses 752,835 238,517 55,201 268,778 | 1315332 | (210,452) 1,104,880
Operaling income 98,010 5,857 20,501 11,459 135,928 {710} 135,218
Assets, depreciation,
and capital
expenditures:
Total assets 1,769,956 72,445 286,432 216,572 | 2,345,406 10,563 2,355,969
Depreciation 91,955 2,307 10,395 7,241 111,900 — 111,900
Capital expenditures 140,262 3,548 9,080 8,186 161,078 — 161,078
Year anded March 31, 2007 (April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)
Millions of yen
Sales of Eliminations
Transportation goods and Real estate Other Total and Consolidated
food services intergroup
Operating revenues
and income:
Operating revenues
from third parties 848,586 208,185 62,725 143,438 | 1,262,835 — 1,262,935
Intergroup operating
revenues and transfers 16,391 43,993 13,308 156,884 230,578 | (230,578) —
Total sales 864,978 252178 76,033 300,323 | 1,493,514 | (230,578) 1,262,935
Operzting expenses 767,703 247,125 54 814 287,814 | 1,357,457 | (229,863) 1,127,593
QOperzting income 97,274 5,053 21,219 12,508 136,056 (715} 135,341
Assets, depreciation,
and capital
expenditures:
Total assets 1,792,324 76,218 282,757 256,404 | 2,407,704 {6,037) 2,401,667
Depreciation 83,079 2,503 10,481 8,763 112,827 — 112,827
Capitai expenditures 146,156 3,922 23,246 10,115 183,440 — 183,440

Notes: 1. Fractional sums less than ¥1 million have been omitted.

2. Method of defining business segments: With the standard breakdown of Japanese manufacturers as a base, business

segments have been determined in a way that shows as precisely and accurately as possible the actual diversity of present

business conditions.

3. Main aclivities of business segments

Transportation: railways, ferries, buses

Sales of goods and food services: department store, sales of goods, food and beverages, wholesale of various goods, elc.

Real estate business: brokerage and leasing of rea! estate, operation of shopping center

Other: hotels, travel services, rental of goods, construction, etc.

4. The principai all-company assets included within the elimination and intergroup item are parent company's surplus funds under

management (cash and negotiable securities) and deferred tax assets.
Fiscal 2005: ¥154 818 million, Fiscal 2006: ¥151,261 million
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2. Information by location

As there were no overseas subsidiaries or branch offices in fiscal 2005 or fiscal 20086, this item was not included.

3. Overseas sales

As there were no overseas sales in fiscal 2005 or fiscal 2008, this item was not included.
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3. NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets
March 31

(Figures tess than ¥1 milfion have been omitted)

Millions of yen

Change from the

2007 2006 previous year
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash 39,536 44,700 {5,164)
Railway fares receivable 26,208 16,823 9,375
Accounts receivable 24,634 21,414 3,220
Accrued income 4076 4,070 5
Short-term loans 18,404 12,053 6,350
Inventaries 6,217 5,409 808
Prepaid expenses 1,805 1,729 75
Deferred tax assets 13,907 14,521 {614)
Other current assets 9,049 10,656 (1,607)
Less allowance for doubtfut accounts (161) (64) (97)
Total current assets 143,769 131,417 12,3514
Fixed assets:
Railway 1,548,292 1,539,246 9,045
Ferry 556 616 (59)
Other operations 60,445 53,869 6,576
Affiliated business 72617 74,415 (1,797)
Construction in progress 61,251 57.817 3,433
Investments and advances: 264,943 244,783 20,159
Stocks of subsidiaries 122,987 122,829 158
Investments in securities 21,950 24 672 (2,721)
Long-term loans 32,882 14,964 17,918
Long-term prepaid expenses 4,316 4,611 (295)
Deferred tax assets 79,845 75,609 4,236
Other investments and advances 3,252 2,379 872
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (281) {282) (8)
Total fixed assets 2,008,106 1,970,748 37,357
Total assets 2,151,875 2,102,166 49,709
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March 31

(Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted)

Millions of yen

Change from the

2007 2006 !
previous year
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans 117,139 128,567 (11,428)
Current portion of long-term debt 34,876 41,471 (6,595)
ren i f long- I r isition of
Cl:aiiv; :c;rrtoc;r; rct)iezng term payables for acquisiti 36,530 36,139 391
Current portion of long-term accounts payable 319 19,600 {19,281)
Accounts payable 147,882 122,473 25,408
Accrued expenses 18,797 19,058 (260)
Accrued consumption tax 3,474 1,381 2,092
Accrued income tax 15,065 23,207 (8,142)
Railway deposits received 8,101 2,334 5,767
Deposits received 12,162 10,862 1,289
Prepaid railway fares received 30,463 30,455 8
Advances received 53,894 50,752 3,142
Advance payments received KY A 344 26
Allowance for bonuses 26,505 26,987 (482)
Other curent liabilities 47 36 10
Total current liabilities 505,630 513,672 (8,041)
Long-term liabilities:
Bonds 249,981 220,000 29,981
Long-term debt 199,698 177,474 22,224
Long-term payables for acquisition of railway properties 427,372 463,857 (36,484)
Long-term accounts payables 2,292 2,612 (319)
Accrued retirement benefits 201,188 182,969 18,218
Allowance for antiseismic reinforcement measures 8,931 14,400 (4,468)
Allowance for environmental safety measures 7,426 7,543 (116)
Other long-term liabilities 15,032 17,407 {2,374)
Total long-term liabilities 1,112,924 1,086,264 26,660
Total liabilities 4,618,555 1,599,936 18,618
Shareholders’ equity:
Capital stock - 100,000 —
Capital surplus - 55,000 -
Additional paid-in capital — 55,000 --
Retained earnings: - 337,633 -
Legal reserve — 11,327 —
Voluntary reserves: -— 248,982 -
Reserve for advanced depreciation on fixed assets - 8,982 -
Other reserves -— 240,000 —
Unappropriated retained earnings - 77,323 -
Evaluation differences on other securities - 9,596 —
Total shareholders' equity - 502,229 -
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity - 2,102,166 -_
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Millions of yen

2007 2006 Change from the
previous year

NET ASSETS -—
Shareholders’ equity: 526,316 - -
Common stock 100,000 —_ -
Capital surplus: 55,000 - -
Additional paid-in capital 55,000 — —
Retained earnings: 370,316 - -
Legal reserve 11,327 - -—-
COther retained earnings: 358,989 - e
F:z::tr:e for advanced depreciation on fixed 15,436 .
Other reserve 260,000
Earned surplus carried forward 83,553 --- -
Valuation and transiation adjustments: 8,003 -
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 8,003 —
Total net assets 533,320 — —
Total liabilities and net assets 2,151,875 — -
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2. Non-Consolidated Statements of Income
Years ended March 31

(Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitted)

Millions of yen

2007 2006 C:f;\%&’;"g the
Operating revenues 865,810 851,280 14,529
Transportation 765,893 756,508 9,387
Transportation incidentals 22,503 22,561 (57)
Other operations 18,229 17,720 509
Miscellaneous 59,183 54 492 4,690
Operating expenses 756,844 742,302 14,541
Personnel costs 272,509 276,194 (3,685)
Non-personnel costs 337,967 320,081 17,885
Energy costs 34,376 34 861 (484)
Maintenance costs 148,995 140,793 8,202
Miscellaneous costs 154,594 144,426 10,167
Rertal paymenis, etc. 24,684 24,722 (37)
Taxes 28,149 28,735 {585)
Degreciation 93,533 92,568 964
Operating income 108,966 108,978 {11)
Nor-gperating revenues 5,507 5218 288
Non-operating expenses 36,787 38,207 (1,420)
Recurring profit 77,686 75,989 1,697
Extraordinary profit 45,112 76,703 (31,591)
Extraordinary loss 47,003 95635 {48,631)
Income before income taxes 75,795 57,057 18,737
Income taxes-current 33,640 39,327 (5.687)
Income taxes-deferred (2.528) (17.410) 14,881
Net income 44,683 35,140 9,542
Retained earnings carried forward from the previous
period - 48,182 —
interim dividends -— 6,000 —
Unappropriated retained earnings - 77,323 —
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3. Non-Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

(Figures less than ¥1 million have been omitled)

Millions of yen
Valuation
. . and
Shareholders’ equity translation
adjustments
Capital Retained earnings
surplus
Total net
i i Net assets
Common QOther retained earnings urrealized
stock | Additional Legal [Reserves fo Earned Total - holding gain
paid-in advanced arm Total on
capital reserve depreciation Cther | surplus securities
reserve | camied
on fixed
forward
assels
?gg“’e atMarcn 31, | yo0000|  ss000| 11327 8.982| 240,000| 77.323|337.633| 492,633 9596 502,229
Change in year ended
March 31, 2007
Dividends from
12,000 12,0
surplhs (12,000) 1 (12,000) | {12,000) { 00}
Net income 44683 | 44683| 44,683 44 683
Provision of reserve
for advanced
depreciation on fixed 4185 (4.185)
assets (Fiscal 2005)
Provision of reserve
for advanced
depreciation on fixed 4.512 (4.512)
assets (Fiscal 2008)
Reversal of reserve
for advanced
depreciation on fixed (991) 991
assets (Fiscal 2005)
Reversal of reserve
for advanced
depreciation on fixed (1.252) 1252
assets (Fiscal 2006)
Other reserve 20,000 | (20,000)
Net increase/decrease
durlan the terrr.l under (1,592) (1,592)
review except in
sharzholders' equity
Total 6453| 20,000 6,22a| 32,683| 32,683 (1,592) 31,080
Bzg'g.",“:e atMarch31. | y50000| 55000 11,327 15436 | 260,000 83553!370.316| 525316 8.003| 533320

Note: Fiscal 2005: Year ended March 31, 2006, Fiscal 2006: Year ended March 31, 2007
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SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

Passenger-Kilometers and Transportation Revenues

Millions of Passenger-Kilometers

Billions of yen

Passenger-Kilometers

Transportation Revenues

Year ended March 31 Change Year ended March 31 Change
2007 2006 Amount % 2007 2006 Amount | %
Sanyo Shinkansen
Commuter Passes 650 630 19 3.1 8.2 7.9 0.2 29
Non-Commuter Passes 14,514 14,218 295 2.1 3204 315.8 46 1.5
Jotal 15,164 14,848 315 21 328.6 3238 4.8 15
Conventional Lines
Commuter Passes 22,922 22,708 213 0.9 142.6 140.8 1.7 1.3
Non-Commuter Passes 15,592 15270 322 21 2941 201.3 27 1.0
Total 38,514 37,979 535 1.4 436.8 432.2 4.5 1.1
Kyoto-Osaka-Kobe Area
Commuter Passes 18,536 18,280 256 1.4 115.3 113.4 1.8 16
Non-Commuter Passes 10,265 9,992 273 27 187.1 184.0 3.0 1.6
Total 28,801 28,272 529 1.9 302.4 297.5 48 16
Other Lines
Commuter Passes 4 385 4428 42) | (1.0) 273 274 (0.0) | (0.2)
Non-Commuter Passes 5327 5,278 48 09 107.0 107.2 0.2) ] (0.2)
Total 8,712 9,706 5 01 134.3 134.7 (0.3)| (0.2)
Total
Commuter Passes 23,572 23,339 232 1.0 150.8 148.8 2.0 1.4
Mon-Commuter Passes 30,106 29,488 617 21 614.5 607 1 7.3 1.2
Total 53,678 52,828 850 1.6 765.4 756.0 9.4 1.2
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Forecasts for Year ending March 31, 2008 (Consolidated Basis)

Years ending/ended March 31

Forecast for 2008 2007 Change from the previous year
Billions of yen Billions of yen Billions of yen %

Operating revenues 1.285.0 1,262.9 22.0 17
Operating expenses 1,156.8 1,127.5 282 25
Operating income 1292 135.3 (6.1) (4.5)
Non-operating revenues / (30.7) (31.1) 04 (1.6)
expenses
Recurring profit 98.5 104.4 (5.6) (5.4)
Extraordinary profit / loss (1.7 (3.2) 15 (48.2)
Incom2 before income taxes

96.8 100.8 (4.0) (4.0)
and minority interests
Net income 548 56.7 (1.9) (3.5)

Earnings Forecasts for Year ending March 31, 2008 by Segment (Consolidated Basis)

Years ending/ended March 31

Forecast for 2007 Change from the previous
2008 year
Billions of yen Billions of yen Billions of yen %
Operating revenues B67.6 864.9 26 0.3
Transportation
Operating income 80.1 g97.2 7.1 (7.4)
Sales f goods and Operating revenues 2536 252.1 1.4 0.6
food services Operating income 52 50 0.1 29
Operating revenues 89.2 76.0 13.1 17.3
Real estate
Operating income: 22.2 21.2 0.9 46
Operating revenues 303.5 300.3 3.1 1.1
Others
Operating income 12.4 12.5 (0.1) (0.9
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Forecasts for Year ending March 31, 2008 {(Non-Consolidated Basis)

Years ending/ended March 31

Forecast for 2008 2007 Change from the previous year
Billions of yen Billions of yen Bilions of yen %

Operating revenues 869.5 865.8 36 0.4

Transportation 7720 765.8 6.1 0.8

Other businesses 97.5 99.9 (2.4) {2.4)
Operating expenses 767.5 756.8 106 1.4
Operating income 102.0 108.9 (6.9} (6.4)
2:;;2:?“”9 revenues/ (31.0) (31.2) 0.2 (0.9)
Recurring profit 71.0 7786 (6.6} (8.6}
Extraordinary profit/ loss 0.0 {1.8) 1.8
Income before income taxes 71.0 757 (4.7} (6.3)
Net income 42.0 446 (2.6} (6.0)
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Other Detailed Data

Years ended March 31

{People, Billions of yen}

2007 2006
Consolidated Non-Consolidated Consolidated Non-Consolidated
Basis Basis Basis Basis
Employees at the end of period 43.354 25.465 43,093 25,830
[Includes staff seconded to other
companies) _ 128,768} — {29,493)
Retirement payment costs ¥61.7 ¥57.4 ¥59.0 ¥543
Nurmnber of employees entitled to
retirement payment 3,264 1,697 3.202 1829
Maintenance costs —_ ¥148.9 — ¥140.7
Depresiation and amortization ¥112.8 ¥93.5 ¥111.9 ¥92.5
Financia! expenses, net ¥{36.9) ¥(35.4) ¥(39.4) ¥(37.2)
Interest and dividend income ¥0.3 ¥0.7 ¥0.3 ¥05
Interest expenses ¥(37.2) ¥(36.2) ¥(39.7) ¥(37.8)
Long-term debt and payables ¥086.7 ¥951.0 ¥1,024.9 ¥861.1
Note: The number of employees on a consolidated and non-consalidated basis refers to regular staff only.
Years ended/ ending March 31
Forecast for
2006 2007 2008
ROA (consolidated) % 57 57 53
ROE (consolidated) % 8.5 9.7 B.7
Operating revenues (consolidated) Billions of yen 1,240.0 1,262.9 1285.0
Transportation revenues {pon-consolidated) Billions of yen 756.5 7658 7720
{consolidated) Billions of yen 125.3 144.9 190.0
Capitz! expenditures
(non-consolidated) Billions of yen 106.3 117.2 160.0
{consolidated) Billions of yen 1,024.9 986.7 g72.0
Long-lerm debt and payables
{non-consolidated) Billions of yen 961.1 951.0 9470
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(Translation) opEATINTD
e , FILE NO. 82-34777

(Security Code 9021)
CGUESGET May 30, 2007

To the Shareholders:

NOTICE OF THE 20TH ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders:

Please take notice that the 20th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of the
Company will be held as described below and you are cordially requested to attend the
meeting.

Since voting rights can be exercised in writing even if you are not present at the
meeting, please review the accompanying "Reference Document for the General Meeting of
Shareholders" and sign and return to us by mail the enclosed voting form indicating your

approval or disapproval of the propositions by June 21, 2007.

Yours very truly,

Masao Yamazaki
President and Representative Director

West Japan Railway Company
4-24, Shibata 2-chome,
Kita-ku, Osaka, Japan




Description

1. Date and hour of meeting:

June 22 (Friday), 2007, at 10:00 a.m.

2. Place of meeting:

RIHGA Royal Hotel
3-68, Nakanoshima 5-chome, Kita-ku, Osaka, Japan

3. Matters forming the objects of the meeting:

Matters to be reported:

1. Report on the business report, the consolidated financial statements and the
financial statements for the 20th fiscal year (from April 1, 2006 to March 31,
2007).

2. Report on the results of audit of the consolidated financial statements for the

20th fiscal year by the account auditors and the Board of Corporate Auditors.
Matters to be resolved:

Proposition No. 1:  Appropriation of retained earnings

Proposition No. 2:  Election of two (2) Directors

Proposition No. 3:  Election of four (4) Corporate Auditors
The business report, the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements
and auditors' reports which shall be attached to the Notice of the General Meeting of

Shareholders are as set forth in the "Documents Attached to the Notice of the 20th

Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders" attached herewith (from page 2 to page
51).

4. Information for exercising voting rights:

I

(2)

In attending the meeting, please present the enclosed voting form to a receptionist at
the place of meeting.

Your voting rights can be exercised by proxy, who must be a shareholder (being one
(1) person) of the Company entitled to vote at this General Meeting of Shareholders.




Reference Document for the General Meeting of Shareholders

Propositions and Information
Proposition Ne. 1:  Appropriation of retained earnings

It is our fundamental policy to put a high priority on continuing to pay dividends on a
consistent basis, as well as increase its internal reserves in order to build up its healthy and
stable management bases in the future.

By taking into consideration various factors, including the performance for the fiscal
year under review and the future business development, management proposes to appropriate
retained earnings for the fiscal year under review, as set forth below:

1. Matters concerning year-end dividends:

With regard to our concrete attitude towards dividend distribution, by taking into
account the shareholders' equity in our capital composition and the state of long-term debt
and payables, we plan to pay an annual dividend of ¥6,000 per share during the period
through the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009, provided we can secure the sustained and
constant growth of operating revenues.

With regard to dividends for the fiscal year under review, management paid an interim
dividend of ¥3,000 per share in December 2006. As a year-end dividend, management
proposes to pay a dividend of ¥3,000 per share.

(1) Kind of property to be distributed as dividends: ~ Cash

(2) Matter concerning the allocation of the property to be distributed as dividends and
the aggregate amount thereof:

¥3,000 per share of common stock of the Company
¥6,000,000,000 in the aggregate

(3} Date on which the distribution of retained
earnings shall become effective: June 25, 2007

2. Other matters concerning the appropriation of retained earnings:

(1)  Item of retained earnings to be increased and the amount thereof:
General reserve: ¥30,000,000,000
(2) Item of retained earnings to be decreased and the amount thereof:

Retained earnings carried forward: ¥30,000,000,000



Proposition No. 2:

Election of two (2) Directors

The term of office of Directors Messrs, Toshifumi Shiba and Takeshi Kakiuchi will
resign from the office of Directors at the close of this Ordinary General Meetings of
Shareholders and it is hereby proposed that two (2) Directors be elected to fill the vacancy.

The candidates for Directors are as follows:

Candidate
No.

Name
{Date of birth}

Brief history and other directorships (if any)

Number of
shares of the
Company held
by Candidate

Takayuki Sasaki
(August 24, 1946)

April 1970 Joined Japanese National Railways

April 1987 General Manager, General Affairs
Department, Kinki Area Operations
Headquarters of the Company

June 1994 General Manager, Finance Department of
the Company

June 1995 Director; General Manager, Finance
Department of the Company

June 1997 Director; Deputy Senior General Manager,
Railway Operations Headquarters; General
Manager, Marketing Department, Railway
Operations Headquarters; General
Manager, Railway Regions Investigation
Team, Railway Operations Headquarters of
the Company

June 1999 Executive Officer; Deputy Senior General
Manager of Railway Operations
Headquarters; General Manager, Marketing
Department, Railway Operations
Headquarters of the Company

June 2000 Full-time Corporate Auditor of the
Company

June 2002 President and Representative Director of
West Japan Railway Daily Service Net
Company

{present post)

11 shares

~3

Koichi Inoue
(October 27, 1953)

April 1976 Joined Japanese National Railways

April 1987 Deputy General Manager, Management
Administration Department, Corporate
Planning Headquarters of the Company

July 1998 On loan to West Japan Railway KIOSK
Co., Ltd. (now, West Japan Railway Daily
Service Net Company} as Managing
Director

June 2002 Executive Officer; General Manager,
Finance Department of the Company

June 2003 Executive QOfficer; General Manager,
Personnel Department of the Company

22 shares




Number of

Candidate Name Brief history and other directorships (if any) CS S;r;;n(;f::d
No. (Date of birth) by Candidate

June 2006

Senior Executive Officer; Deputy Senior
General Manager, Railway Operations
Headquarters; Senior General Manager,
Marketing Division, Railway Operations
Headquarters of the Company (present
post)

The candidates have no special interest in the Company.

Proposition No. 3:

Election of four (4) Corporate Auditors

The term of office of the Corporate Auditors, four (4) in all, will expire at the close of
this Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders and it is hereby proposed that four (4)
Corporate Auditors be elected.

The candidates for Corporate Auditors are as follows.

The Board of Corporate Auditors has consented to this proposition.

Name
{Date of birth)

Brief history and other directorships (if any)

Number of
shares of the
Company held
by Candidate

Noboru Koide
{May 27, 1949)

April 1973
April 1987

April 1996

June 2000

June 2002

May 2005

June 2005

March 2006

June 2006

Joined Japanese National Railways

Manager, Fund Planning Section, Finance
Department of the Company

General Manager, General Affairs
Department of the Company

Executive Officer; Deputy Senior General
Manager, Tokyo Headquarters of the
Company

Executive Officer; General Manager,
Fukuoka Branch Office of the Company

Senior Executive Officer; Deputy Senior
General Manager, Corporate Planning
Headquarters of the Company

Director and Senior Executive Officer;
Deputy Senior General Manager, Corporate
Planning Headquarters; Senior General
Manager, Toleyo Headquarters of the
Company

Director and Senior Executive Officer;
Senior General Manager, Supporting
Headquarters for the Victims of the
Derailment Accident on the Fukuchiyama
Line of the Company

Full-time Corporate Auditor of the Company
{present post)

36 shares
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Number of
shares of the

Name Brief history and other directorships (if any) Company held
(Date of birth) by Candidate
April 1972 Joined the Ministry of Transport of Japan
Tuly 1998 Director-General of Kinki District
Transport Bureau of the Ministry
July 1999 Counselor, Cabinet Secretariat {and
Director of Personnel Division, Prime
Minister's Secretariat, Prime Minister's
Office)
Jan. 2001 Deputy Vice-Minister for Policy
Tsutomu Iwasaki Coordination, Minister's Secretariat,
2. (Apl’ll 28 1949) Mmlstxy of Land, Infrastructure and 14 shares
' Transport of Japan
July 2002 Retired from the Ministry
Aug. 2002 Director of the Japan Railway Construction
Public Corporation
Oct. 2003 Executive Director of Japan Railway
Construction, Transport and Technology
Agency
July 2004 Full-time Corporate Auditor of the Company
(present post)
April 1971 Joined the Ministry of Finance
June 1983 Assistant to Budget Examiner, Budget
Bureau of the Ministry of Finance
July 1985 Assistant Professor of the Department of
Economics, Osaka University
April 1987 Assistant Professor of the Department of
K Yoshid Economics, Kyoto University
- shida
3 azuo 1o Aug. 1988 Professor of the Department of Economics, 9 shares
(January 10, 1948) I
Kyoto University
April 1997 Professor of the Faculty of Economics,
Graduate Schoo) of Kyoto University
June 2002 Corporate Auditor of the Company
(present post)
April 2006 Dean of Business Administration Research,
Graduate School of Kyoto University
{(present post)
March 1959 Joined Nippon Life Insurance Company
July 1986 Director
March 1989 Managing Director
March 1992 Senior Managing Director
4. Ikuo Uno March 1994 Vice President and Representative Director 11 shares
{January 4, 1935) . . .
April 1997 President and Representative Director
April 2005 Chairman and Representative Director
(present post)
June 2005 Corporate Auditor of the Company

(present post)




Number of

shares of the
Name Brief history and other directorships (if any) Company held

(Date of birth) by Candidate

(Other directorships)
*  Chaiman and Representative Director of Nippon Life
Insurance Company

(Notes)

1.

Candidate Mr. Ikuo Uno, as Chairman and Representative Director of Nippon
Life Insurance Company, has business dealings with the Company.

Candidates Messrs. Tsutomu Iwasaki, Kazuo Yoshida and Tkuo Uno are
candidates for external auditors as provided for in Article 2, paragraph 3, item
8 of the Regulations to Enforce the Corporation Law of Japan. Each of the
candidates has currently assumed the office of Corporate Auditor of the
Company and three years, five years and two years have elapsed, respectively,
since they assumed office as such.

As described in the "brief history and other directorships" above, each of the
candidates for external auditors has broad experience and expertise in
management and other matters. Hence, we believe that they will be able to
properly perform their duties as External Corporate Auditors of the Company
and hereby propose their election.

While Candidates Messrs. Tsutomu Iwasaki and Kazuo Yoshida were serving
as External Corporate Auditors of the Company, on Apnl 25, 2005, the
Company caused a grave accident between Tsukaguchi and Amagasaki on the
Fukuchiyama Line, claiming the lives of 106 passengers and injuring more
than 500 passengers.

Each of the candidates, utilizing his broad experience and expertise in
management and other matters, has expressed his opinions on a timely and
appropriate basis and also confirmed the details of our efforts to prevent the
occurrence of such any accident. Thus, they have properly performed their
duties.

While Candidate Mr. Tkuo Uno was serving as Representative Director of
Nippon Life Insurance Company, in May 2003, the company was issued a
cease and desist order by the Fair Trade Commission and a business
improvement order by the Financial Services Agency, with regard to
representation in its cancer insurance brochures. In July 2006, it was also
issued a business improvement order by the Financial Services Agency with
regard to its administrative structure for the payment of insurance proceeds,
etc.

While Mr. Uno was serving as External Director of Matsushita Electric
Industrial Co., Ltd., in September 2006, the company was issued a surcharge
payment order by the Fair Trade Commission with regard to its marketing
activities relating to traffic signal construction works. While he was serving
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as External Corporate Auditor of Odakyu Electric Rallway Co., Ltd., in May
throngh June 2005, the company filed with Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. a
report on amendment to and remediation of its securities report and other
documents with regard to disclosure of its shares registered in the names of
individuals. While he was serving as External Corporate Auditor of Tohoku
Electric Power Company, Incorporated, the company was found to have failed
to file a report on an automatic shutdown of its atomic furmace and was issued
an order for amendment to its safety and security manual by the Ministry of
Economy, Trade and Industry in May 2007. A fact was also revealed that the
company had been conducting a legally inadequate water intake at its
hydraulic power plant and it was instructed to suspend water intake for any use
other than power generation by the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and
Transport in March 2007. While he was serving as External Corporate
Auditor of Sanki Engineering Co., Ltd., in February 2006, the general manager
of the sales department of the company was issued a summary order by the
Tokyo Summary Court on a charge of interference in competitive bidding with
regard to construction works ordered by the Defense Facilities Administration
Agency and in May 2006, the company was issued a business suspension order
by the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and Transport with regard to public
works-related conduit works, etc. in a specified district for thirty days.

Mr. Uno, utilizing his broad experience and expertise in management and
other matters, has expressed his opinions on a timely and approprate basis and
also confirmed the details of their efforts to prevent the occurrence of such any
incident for the abovementioned companies for which he is serving
concurrently as External Director and External Corporate Auditor. Thus, he
has properly performed his duties.

-END-
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Matters for reporting:

.1.. Report on the business ‘report, the consolidated financial statements and
the financidl statements for the 20th fiscal year (from April 1, 2006 to
March 31, 2007).

The particulars of the above busmess report, consolidated financial statements
and financial statéments wéte reponed to the meeting.

2. Report on the results of audit of the consolidated financial statements for

the 20th fiscal year by the account aunditors and the Board of Corporate
Auditors.

The particulars of the above results of audit were reported to the meeting.




Matters for resolution:
Proposition No. 1:  Appropriation of retained earnings

The proposition was approved and adopted as proposed. The year-end dividends
. were determined to be ¥3,000 per share.

Proposition No. 2:  Election of two (Z) Directors

The proposition was approved and adopted as proposed. Messrs. Takayuki Sasaki
and Koichi Inoue, 2 in all, were elected as Directors and assumed office, respectively.

Proposition No. 3:  Election of four (4) Corporate Auditors

The proposition was approved and adopted as proposed. Messrs. Noboru Koide,
Tsutomu Iwasaki, Kazuo Yoshida and Ikuo Uno, 4 in all, were elected as Corporate
Auditors and assumed office, respectively.

Messrs. Tsutomu Iwasaki, Kazuo Yoshida and Tkuo Uno are external auditors as
provided for in Article 2, item 16 of the Corporation Law of Japan.

-END -
Appendix

1. At the meeting of the Board of Directors held after the close of the Ordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders, the following Representative Director and Director with
specific title was appointed and assumed office:

Vice President and Representative Director: Takayuki Sasaki

2. At the meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors held after the close of the Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders, Messrs. Noboru Koide and Tsutomu Iwasaki were
appointed as Full-time Corporate Auditors and assumed office, respectively.

3. At the meeting of the Board of Directors held after the close of the Ordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders, the following Executive Officers were elected and assumed
office, respectively:

Vice President, Representative Director and

Executive Officer: Takayuki Sasaki
Director and Senior Managing Executive

Officer: Takashi Kondo
Director and Senior Executive Officer: Koichi Inoue
Senior Executive Officer: Akiyoshi Yamamoto
Executive Officer: Yasuki Nishioka




Executive Officer: Hideyuki Miura
Executive Officer: Yoshinori Tsujiko
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Dear Shareholders: "1« -7 047 v B s e o0 Ve beie

We should likeito thank you;. our shareholders;.for- your. support to our business
activities.
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On April 25, 2005, the Company caused a grave acc1dent between Tsukaguchl and
Amagasaki on the Fukuchiyama Line, claiming the lives.ofi106 passengerstandiinjuting more
than 500 passengers.
A T U LR A TR A IS R ARV SN N Lt
We now again pray for al] the victims of the accident and would like to express our
sincerest apology’ tothe :bereaved /family.... We would ralso likeé to” express bur'deepest
sympathy.and sincerest apology'to the.wounded passengers.and:wish.them'to recover as soon!
as'possible:.so- I 2 '-'J!s:':'.':.:):‘ P IIPRETIS ULV SV IO 1S B U I S SR IPRRTIRU RN 75 S P N o6
vty e o, e bics = Lourers Lre v T R R T R O ¢ BRI M WY PP
T 'Weiwould like .to fexpress our sincerest -apology.ito'our customers, our*shareholders
and the residents of the affected area for causing great.anxiety and troubte..” ™ v «ou or

-1, Currently, we-have. steadily. implemented various.measures /to: enhance.safety. We
have. also-set the'/building of a corporateLculmre of placing: firstipriority 'on!‘safety™ as our
utmost'management target’and exerted iour. efforts t0.complete: the farget in accordance with.
our ne\',vky.formulaxed "Corporate Phitosophy" zind Safety Charter": 5 9 »rlte #0 Lo sy
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i, :Never forgetting :the accndent and stronglykeeping in mind: ihab we are in’ charge of:
guarding:the invaluable: lives.of:many-passengers,.we:will place top priority ‘'on safety at all”’
times and exert our all-out efforts to prowde‘ safe:and trustworthy transportation services. ! i4i"
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11t Through- thesee'fforts iwe williprove: werthy-of eur 'shareholders trust:. "~ :We: cordlatly
seek the.continued understanding and support of our shareholders. "~ - 4* <097 0o
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May 2007 R I
Masao Yamazaki
T L A I A PR A TS PH o AP AT '*-'7 it uni oPresident and'Representative Director
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BUSINESS REPORT FOR THE 20TH FISCAL YEAR - - .-

=50 = - Fer the period from April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007.

I Matters concerning the situations of West Japan Rallway Group (the "Group")
e ”l'-l;‘,‘.". e’ i LIS jl P . N YRR I l ety :-:.‘.."f S ‘\.\"'-"... ,", " J'

. Business trends: and-achievements. ;' .. . ¢ .o e Ly kA ,-:E o

(1)  General developments and results of business activities
R VI USEN RO B O O 0 I I T A T AN T
On- Apnl 25, 2005,mhe Company caused sairvery grave:.accident. to :occur between
Tsukaguchlrand Amagasaki onithe Fukuchiyama.Line-and 406 lives.were claimed.and more:
than 500 passengers were injured. The Company has since continued its all-out efforts :to
respond to the bereaved and the victims, and engaged in holding memorial ceremonies
commemordting - the _victims and- debneﬁng sessions -on the developrnent s0f . 1ts "Safety

Enhancement Plan", among atherthings.;, i, ¢t o Lut ot sl sy s T 0

With a resolve never:to permit the occurrence :ofisuch:any accident, the- Company has
formulated sa:'Corporate ;Philosophy”, which'shows:the. cause and'.value.to pursué:as.a
corporate entity; and-a 'Safety -Charter”, a practical ;action guideline. for, safety, .and -has
exerted its efforts to ensiire-them. to be {fully. 1mderstood: and::put into:practice /by. all
employees. Specifically, for the purpose of enhancement of safety, its greatest challenge,
the Company has exertéd its efforts ‘to.implement the- "Safety.-Enhancément Plan" 'steadily
both: in-its.software-and hardware infrastruetures:»» The Company. alsé-has:instituted a new,
"Railway. Safety Management-Manuval”;in:accarddnce with :the ‘mend=d Railway. Business
Law of Japan, enforced in October 2006, to establish a safety management system.
Furthermore; the: Company -revised its Group's medium:term: management fargets;.instituted
in March 2005, to set the "building-ofia: corporateiculture of placing top:priority:on safety” as
its utmost management target and has since carried out various measures to complete the
target. AR

Py ogwnl
-«+vIn additionyithe:Companyrincreased the number of external officers in June 2006 to
further strengthen its functions to monitor and supervise the execution of business.

Thus, the Company has exerted its all-out efforts to promote the enhancement of
safety steadily in the railway business, its core business, and in other businesses,
implemented various measures by exploiting their respective characteristics and made
effective use of its assets.

As a result of these efforts, on a consolidated basis, operating revenues for the fiscal
year under review amounted to ¥1,262.9 billion, up 1.8% from the previous fiscal year, while
operating income amounted to ¥135.3 billion, up 0.1%. Recurring profit and net income
(after income taxes) totaled ¥104.1 billion, up 1.9%, and ¥56.7 billion, up 22.1%,
respectively.




(2) Ind1v1dual developments ‘and results of business activities by segment SREAA
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In the ranlway operatlons the Company has implemented the Safety Enhancement
Plan.and other'méasures’intensively to establish a corporate culture that ‘places t6p ptibrity on
safety.'i. To bei specific,-the Compény ‘has continued to-hold "safety tiieetings"at whichits”
officers'can exchange-opinions: with its employees in the field tothake them strictly aware-of
placing ' top ..priority : on- safety,. and'!ianalyzed the .particulars -of “ "aecident origins" -and
"worrisome events' ireported iby-the iemployees:in thefield:. Inaddition, for more expedient
execution’'of capital investments necegsary for its .safety;measuresi: the Company has reviséd”
authority ¢oncerning.safety-related. investments. < Furthermors, -the Company has' improved -
its system for:effective safety.education by upgrading simulatdrs for the trainingiof crewmén
and computer-aided instruction (CAI) for station operating personnel and conducted general
train-accident drills to enhance its capabilities 10 respond to the occurrence of any accident,
including~the rescie of' passengers ‘and..cooperation. with.(the -police’ and: other: televant
authorities?” ~ Withregard ito - hardware Linfrastructures;: the :Comparty *has 4miproved -its-
ATS-SW:" systems: to .control excessive .speed. at points-and ‘crossings, finstalled: additional
ATS:P:systems- on-iits- rail !tracks, “dccelerated’ .quake-proof :reinforcement »works of. the:
columns of its elevated bridges and built additional ancmometers to bealerti to strong.winds
and additional train proximity warning devices to prevent trackmen from being hit by trains,
among ‘other:things:.:s Furthermore;; rn)rbspdnse “t6.ithe .proposals’ of the:- "Safety Advnsory
Committeé" .consisting oft third-party: experts;” thevCompany' has 'takeri necessary measufesy,
inchuding ' the establishment. of a..“Safety i Reésearchr;Center”. 'specialized=int safety-related
researchrand .development.in.Juné 3006.-:: The:Company-also. publiciZzed 'an' "interim. report!:
on the proposals of the committee and the implementation and examinationsthereof. i « Y 2.7

- With Tegard to. tranisportation; the ‘Company has'applied its ‘operation control Systems
in broadeér areasforithe-purpose of praviding” more: stable transport based on safety: '~ As'to-
the conventional railway lines, in October 2006, the Company extended the new:..Rapid trdin-
services to the Tsuruga station following the completion of the construction for through
services:of the, Hokuriku and Kosei Lines andtintMarch.2007, :révised dimetables; iricluding
the. opening 6fithe ¥ Sakura=Shukugawastation”:i. As'to.the.Sanyo Shinkansen' Line services, -
the number of.passengkrsihas increasedisteadily since the ‘Company raised-the frequency of:
"Nozomi! trains that run directly: for Toekyo' from #{akata and Hiroshima upon the.revision of”
the ﬁmétablé"im-'March' 20067 Hetlce;i'the' Comtpany. ran:more special trains {o - further:
enhance convenience...: The: Company. has incurred’losses in natural calamities: in July:2006-
the Company was forced to suspend opérationston.the”Geibi Line and the Sanko Isine due to a4
heavy rain and in November 2006, a train on the Tsuyama Line was derailed by fallen rocks
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SANed With s regard .10 marketmg, nactivitiesy; the [ Company has made its "Express-
Reservatlons service, which enables its users to make and change reservations:for the’
Shinkansen with ease via PCs and cell phones, available for the whole Tokaido and Sanyo
Shinkansen Lines and proactively spread basic information on the Shinkansen services,
including the frequency, required time and prices, to promote the utilization of its services.
With regard to "J-WEST Cards" necessary for the "Express Reservations" service, the
Company has exerted its efforts to increase the number of card members through PR
activities as to the privileges of membership. Furthermore, the Company has engaged in



sales promotion of the "DISCOVER-WEST Campaigns” jointly with the,réléyant local areas,;
travel agencies and other JR companies to create tourist demand. The Company has also
launched a travel product "Club DISCOVER WEST" targeting people fiftyryears: old: and
above to incite tourist demand

.
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" -;_-(Wrth regard 1o passenger services, ,the'Cr)mpany has exerted. its. effortssio- make its.
railway. system. more: passenger-friendly iby.adding more. "Green Ticket:Vending Machines",
installing. elevators,;escalators .and -other :barrier-free : equipment;: andmaking « the: "Lost
Property Admmlstratlon System”, which allows quick inquires-of lost property but have-been.
available only in the Keihanshin area,rwhlch covers the-cities, ofiKyoto, Osaka: and Kobe as
well as: the surrounding': metropolitan -areas), rava_rlable)m the :Okayamayi-Hiroshima . and
Fukuoka .areas as.well. : The -Company.has also -installed:-automatic: external- defibrillators.
(AEDs) at one-major statron after: another and:given first-aidtraining tor its station staff and
others: ) T B S O I LV B St o U T U L P PRI FES 1 S0 S P RIPPIL IO FLI CLIOIR

E T S TN LRV PR PRI - S . e
e Wrth rega;rd to: technologrcal development, the Companyvhas placed emphasrs on
ensuring: safety and enhancing services.and focused .its.efforts .on developing: GPS-mounted
train, proximity ;warningrdevices,; which, are backup.systems to prevent accidents caused- by
human, errors, . as well as; passenger guidance. systems for.use-of its station- staff, to Jmprove
their: customer SEIVICSS. | .5 ot 2h 7 bt i G ST D, e el i gt ey et te T
R N P R L TS F LTI N R TR PR UL :J‘: TP SN AR IUE N, ST

1 AW 1th regard-to environmental matters,::the _Company.:has,rsinicomplianceW.ith: law,
promoted -environment: ‘management-in. cooperation withi its .group cognpanies and- erigaged
aggressively in: reducing, adverse: impacts-of {its -railway, business-.onithe environment,
including:.the -introduction :0f-energy-saving :rail=ars :and. the, reductionnof. waste- products.
The Company has also issued .an environmentteporl.s ©t o W " fLads 5 i erf 00 4

«.n oo With:regard; to-ferry.services,.the Company has’exerted-its;efforts to establish a safety
management Systemiin_ accordzace -with: its.,’Mariné - Safety Managemem Maruall" for: th\,.
purpose ofsafeandtrustworthy operatrons AR L O S PRV O G LAITRR PO I
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¢ .o With regard. to ‘bus. busmess, the .Group has: equipped-its: vehrcles-wrth extraJsafe ty.
devrces -and ;gave, more: intensive-education and-training to:its’ employces' to. establish-a safer:
transportation -system. In.addition,. while - competition. in.ithe“highway. -bus- services ‘is.
intensifying, the. Group  has-eXerted ‘its, efforts ito ‘offer products to meet.various customer
needs. by Jleveraging . its .marketing-capabilities by .the- full-fledged. provision .of its Internet
reservationi .service:;'YHighway r.'Bus:. ;Net".. .and-.. commenejng?! the. :'services= of its.
ultrahlgh capacity buses "Youth Mega Dream Express™..; 5 e o J L R R R LI
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As a result operatmg revenues from the transponatlon busmess amounted to ¥864.9
billion, up 1.7% from the prevrous fiscal year'and operating cincome amounted to ¥972

billion, down 0.8%. = - .. S e R DT A PRt




<Sales of goods and food services>
. RIS N

The Group has continued to implement the "NexStation Plan" to create convenient
and atiractive'stations and ‘opened new,self-service kiosks -and' mini-size-conveniénce stores
"Daily-in®. *.The.Group‘has also endeavored-to-developroriginal preducts -and’tevitalize its
existing shops: and! stores:: . Additionally,” the€ Group has openéd. a1 "Dessértti Perrace”, -
collection: of famous” dessert shops, in. thé'Osaka station to-expand*thé bisiness of sales. of
goods and food services.oivits: station. premises!:* "JR Kyoto Isetan":has remodeéledrits sales .
floors according to seasons and introduced a fuller lme of orrgmal products to increase
profits. RO LRI A SV ST [ F S R T

As a result;: operating: revenues from the sales of goods and food services amourited to
¥252.1 billion, up 3.2% from the previous fiscal year and operating income amounted to ¥5.0
billion, down:15.2%.:: so4u itz w0 a2 e 220 G g0 Gt L
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, In line with-the opening of the.elevated station house over,the tracks of the Okayama
station, the Group has opened a shoppmg center called "SUN STATION TERRACE
OKAYAMA" facing the passage connecting the cast and west of the stagion. The; Group has
also opened a "IR Kanazawa 'Station NK ﬁurldrng" "with’ a large shoppmg center as its tenant
il front of the Kanazawa”statlon'J Thus the Group has 1 promoted developmem 'of its station
premises and surroundmg propemes It also has" aggresswefy promofed sales of
condonminium apartmenta on 'it§ former: Vatat 16ts of Yesiddnce for “its employeés to make
more effective use ofits:assets. > Furthéfmore, hi-éorinection- with thé: plan’ for the' renovation
of the Osaka station and the development of a New North Building, the Group has
commenezd constructiot of-the New North- Building to csdfry but the planistéadily. - N

Ll

The Group's three station building companies in Hyogo Prefecture were consolidated
in July 2006 t¢ respond:swiftly -and: properly t6. changes’ in .theienvironment, mcludmg
mtensrfymg competrtlon and dlversrfy'ng needs-ofclife.r i ;i o iy o O
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" As aresult, Operatmg revenues from the real estate, business, amounted to ¥76.0 billion,
up 0.4% from the previous, ﬁscal year, and qppra.tmg income amounted to. ¥21 2 billion, up
3.5%.
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<Other businesses> " T

As to the traval agency busmess we havé foc‘usefd oar sttertious eﬂ'orts on marl\etmg
activities by having 4 fuller }ine, and pronotmg sales Via-the' Thterniet, of- -products of " Red
Balloon Centennial” launched on the momentum of the cénterinial' 6T Establishment of
Nippon Travel Agency Co., Ltd.- ‘As:to-the 'hotel 'business; we have exeited our efforts on
sales promotlonal activities by refurbishing banquet- halls:and guesturooms and‘ launching

L

various events.in the food.and beverage divisionsz.. + =t 1 - T el
‘- , f
As-a result, operating revenues from other-businesses: inithe aggregate amounted to
¥300.3 billion, up 7.2% from the previous, fiscal, year and operating income amounied to
¥12.5 billion, up 9.2%.



2. Capital expenditure
oo . . NS D L S T A |r'fr(l,.-_)j“
Durmg the ﬁscal year under review; the roup made :capital- 1nvestments,by placing
the full, weight of.its effort.on_ enhancing’ safety; including .measiires: to icontrol excessive
speed.-on -points -and crossings and dead-end lines_and the, installation of additional ATS-P.
svstems on i1ts rail~tracks.:, ;The- Group- also. made: investments-to ; :improveservicés, and.
profitability and build up-its, transportauon mfrastructures -among other thmgs RIS

‘ -
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The 1nvestments totaled ¥1 83 4 bllllon
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A. Malor projects completed during the fiscal year under reyview are as:follows:

v, - - + R ) -

. Constructlon to lnstall ATS systems (measures to control excessive. speed on p01nt°
and crossings and dead-end lines).
+  Construction to elevate the tracks between Bishoen and Sugimoto-cho on the

Hanwa Line.
: COﬂStI’U\.thn to extend the operauon controi system for the JR Kyoto and JR Kobe
’ SN VT B PN R AT o s et oo

Lines. - 't - ,

Constructton to bu11d a new statlon ("Sakura-Shuk‘uga,wa on the JR Kobe Lme ).

e

" e onstructlon to 1mpr0ve transportatlon “of the Hokurlku Mam Llne and the Kosel

14 .Jl'J- 2l n"

Llne(forthmt_ghserwce vl uels 21 swRopent wsibe

. Constructlon to bulld new rolling.stock (conventional railway, lmes. 205 railf‘ars)
oo Development of th" st_te;for the.east,exxt of the Kanazawa station, . .

ST L PR A MR SR PO Lt PRSP T 11 B RS
B. Major pro_lects;under constructlon as, of the, end- of thefiscal year under FEVIEW are as.
follows:
= T ’ AT R A Tt : oo ’I" ! PR .~I'
not Extended constructlon to-install ATS-P. systems on t}L r...levar't lines.
+ Construction to install additional anemometers. - R
»  Construction to elevate the tracks near the Hlme_]l station on the JR Kobe ! sme and
7 néar the Nara station oni the- Yamatomee T RS

vy

Construction to"Build néw $tatiohs (tWo on 'the JR r{yoto Lme one on the JR Kobe
Line and one on the Sanyo Main Line).
* Construction to renovate the Osaka station of the JR Kyoto and J R Kobe Lmes and
to develop the new North Building.
Lt _,Constructlon to renovate. the Okayama station,of the Sanvo Main [ine. .,
. Construction to renovate the statmn premlses o*' f‘le Tefmop stanon and the

‘_S]un Imamlyastatlon S A T T T T T o POty PH AP UP S
*.. Construction to. introduce automatic: ticket ga.. and ICOCA card systems in, the
Okayama and Hiroshima.areas: , - o' -+ -2 00 Doald vy e o o

+  Construction of access facilities accezupanying. the coustruction 10 bulld the Osaka
Outer Loop Line.

+  Construction to improve transpor*at.on of the Sagano' Line (corlstruenon of a
double line between Xyoto and Sonobe). ' -

+  Construction to build new rolling stock (Shinkansen N700 series: 192 railcars,
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conventional railway lmes 204 railcars).
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The"Group borrowed '¥29.9 bllhon!m domestrcf straight: bonds' and ¥37.1"billion' in’
long-term debt, Wthh were uscd for debt redcmptlon and capital expendlture
. LTI R Te LOr SLARTE F R UF NP SEE RN NPT E T BT 19¢ t OA TN PO TR F I L ol
4. r-.. Future. cha]lengcs,.:- WG ETl L WG i i'l P PSP TS S50 TP N FEP L PTL LI ¢4 {0
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o vf .Oni April : 25y 2005"*the‘ Company.caused'alvery' grave. accident 4o ‘occur Ibetween
Tsukaguctn and. Amagasakx on-the:Fukuchiyami Line and mnsequenﬁy, se‘nously eroded the:

conﬁdenc&of its customers and the* st1ety-whlch 1tkhﬁd 'been*bmldmg up T AT A LAY

i e sty erndt b e svia g N mgnng enirnt TEEO D BT
o Weawidl contmue toexert our: compap.y~w1de' ‘efforts":to réspend! t‘o-‘-'anvaIcllms" by’
listening to their. opmlcmstand Tequestsiin all smcerlty A
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¢ ol . Wer will fully - cooperate rwith -the Alrcraft and R&llway"ACCldents ‘Invéstigation’:
Comnussmn of the Ministry 6f LandjInfrastradture-and: Transport t:o:mvastlga'te the causes of
the.accident; andr when'the Mmlmtmnlprodnces »m‘lynreporﬁ onvits m:.festrgamon deal'with ’It
with all smcentyandrespmdlproperiy“.-. ST N5 I Sl s URRS LT LS VLS BN Y O F R

TNV PO P B SST IR PR HO T M P ) I 22 e e P u'“]r Uasd LR Ui AT Gl T '.f,.-'.

s Wh xunderstand that-it is:the. first-and: foremost:for management to! plaée top" ‘pr16r1ty on’
safety-at all times 'and«restore: the: confidence ofour-customerstand. the -society and that we!
must build up a firm foundation for the.Group asz whole to ;persistently developin the future’
while offering useful services to the society and increasing profitability, based on the
provision of:safe, trustworthy. hlgh-quainyn'anspmfatlon 'services.s nr iyl e d

sy e soe sornmencr toosnnnhiaon odl e L are o s 9o

c0 L' LIWithi this basiéiunﬂerstanding;éwe.ml} mnke ait emiployeessstrictly: aware “of;: and.
materialize,ibar:newlydnstituted'Corparate: Philosophy* and *Sefety: Charter!); 'and will miore:
strenuouslytconcentrate our-efforts'on'énhancing safety andirestoringconfrdence to cause!'no
ac¢ident to '.prod'u'ce; ¢casualties among.our'custonters dnd: "no:serioudilabor. Hceident:to our!
employees™: fas:: declared irin our LbGroupls cmedidm-term. :managehent” targets.’ . Ot ithe:
momenturiy’ offOur“ZOt]'m‘anni".rersary'fdﬁ ficorperatidn, We will seek:to.defme atnew!vision'for:
the next exaand effect reforms.of our mind-Set anduginess operationsdnsgeneril. © «i1wifts. i
: e wenastUhe womone Lop wunesp onetusio e owae D oo e eaab et
.t Withrregard: toi°thesrailway ‘buginess;: based<onythe: steadytqmplementatlon ‘of the -
“Safety. Enhahcement Plan" ‘and with'thetinderstandimg that it is.our primary rolé toi'build as
corporate-culture of placing top priority] én:safetyV;-we 'wilticentinuetto:improve our: safety -
facilities and equipment, including ATS systems. Simultaneously, te make "basiciactions";
which we believe are important to ensure safety, take in root among all employees, we will
implement. measures-with .thé 'aim ofiibecoming-thei:"The : Only-One «Corporate :Group that
Rigorously: Performs Safety Checks by “Pointing and Call".!i»Purthermore, - by: utilizing'our
"Railway Safety Education. Center!' ‘newly-estabhished mever to .forget:the :accident and ‘to
seriously ponder:its gravity in the future; weswill provide more intensive safety education and
training' and furthér focus 'our: efforts:'on smeasures "to . enhance. safety.: -In addition,™in’
accordance- with - the 'Railway Safety Managemeht'Manualu“ instituted in 2006,-we will
conduct safety audits to find.out and solve senous problems i an effort to cstabllsh a safety
management system. W o

LY
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Furthermore, in July 2007, to formulate a umlateral planmng and operatmg system for
the Shinkansen railway business, we will establish a new "Shinkansen:-Supervising
Department” under the Railway Operations Headquarters, as well as a new "Shinkansen
Management Division" with the functions of a branch- for. the -Shinkansen-related field.

P u" T (el . N I M '{ ety

With regard to transportatlon and marketmg actrvrtles under the circumstances where
competition is intensifying, we will continue our efforts to provide;safe and. trustworthy
high-quality transportation services tc passengers based on the timetables of our conventional
ratlway, lines, revised ,in ‘March 2007-and the timetable .of-our Sanyc Shinkansen Liiie to be
revised in July 2007 upon, the launch of N70C;series railcats. . We-also: will::.continue -our
"DISCOVER WEST: Campaigns": and .for ‘the. new ipromotion:of: our;travel- product ."Club
DISCOVER WEST" targeting people fifty years old and above, promote projects focused on
"Kyoto";in-cooperation with:all relevant parties-in the:local- community..c Furthermore, we
will establish a "Customer Service Department” undér the. Marketing . Division to. rzise. the
level of services in general, including front-desk services of our employees, stations and train
equipment. ' Simultaneously, 'we will increase the ,humber., of "Green” Ticket. Vending
Machines";. promote educatior-andstraining of our .employeestfor the erihancement- of: their
salesmanshrp‘capabllltles and,-in-.collaboration ~with' local -authorities,- continue -to | install
barrier-free facilities, in an effort to create "customer-friendly stati~=s!. : :In-addition;. we will
endeavor to further promote the use of our "Express Reservations" service, introduce our
"ICOCA. in the .Okayama.and Hiroshima.areas and:rer.ovate;our:website."JR..Odekake Net"
that prowdes various information .onithe Company,iit-an. effort 1to-upgrade -our information
technology that ma_{ help improve our cusoimer sarvices.! bt g o e BT o
LI ST P L B S H TP PR I S NP IS I R0 | B ,.-._J',_.--_._z Hisued wnoolie s

With regard to sales of goods.-and food;cervn.e aidi real :estate. business; to- creats
more attractive stations and earn the confidence of consumers, we will promote our
development projects; renovate the hotel and dérartment-store in.the Kyoto Station Building
on.the momentum-of the 10th anniversary cfiiis‘opening and. otherwise expand.thesbusiness
orrour station, premises-and-surrounding properties. :~With regard.to theproject:to renovate-
the , Osaka. station--and; develop” . New:I'lerth - Building,;- we_will . steadily.-premote . the

construction of the:New North Building, which-commenced-in October 2006, and develop the
condition ,for the- -e¥pansion .of iour ‘ACTY - Osaka- Buildirg.. Inaddition, to. enhance -the.
convenience of, our, custcmers whe may:rse our;"ICQCA', we. willicontinie our :aggressive.
efforts to increase member stores of electronic money and promote alliances with other
companies. :,, Furthérmore,_to: strengtheri; thes strategv formulating functions-.of icur whole
development., business, we- will/lireorganize:, -the-. Corporate "« Rescurce,-Development
Headquarters into; a- Business: Developme'lt :Headquarters nOrpuI ~forth:. greater . efforts “to.
develop Various projects: ..o. oo gnr eple e e te b DT st Lo b LT e,
' : oo N I T LAY '-}r.'_"'-x.a'"’.‘tin'. I

Wlth regard to our:corporate social responsihility:(CSR), while recognizing: anew the’
importance thereof, we .will further carry out:our CSR.with .the CSR Promotion' Committee
acting as a central figure, and also_endeavér to establish proper administration in-our whole
business  activities, . among - other thingsy Wwith our' Compliance. ‘Committee and- Risk
Management Commitiee acting ‘as-central figures...:In addition; we will further improve our
internal control functions while taking:into-account our attitude.towards the systems of
evaluations and audits of internal-control over financial reporting, which will- become
effective as from the year commencing on April 1, 2008.
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We cordially seek the contmued understandmg and support of our sharecholders.
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5.+ Ak$éts and proﬁts for'the most recent three fiscal years

RN R
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6.

) e . 17th ] 18th ¢ 19th, . (current year),
Lo April 1,2003 - April 1,2004 - "April 1,2005 - "April 1, 2006 -
R (] Mar. 31, 2004 Mar. 31, 2005 Mar. 31, 2006 Mar. 31, 2007
. Operating revenues .«s.[-", 52157 . 1o 01,2208+ - ~1,240:0. b, 12629, .
(billion yen)| -« vg.oo v 0 ool e o o i
Recurring profit 85.8 95.9 102.1 104.1
(billion yen) ’ WP v
Net income ' . 47.0 58.9 46.5 56.7
(billion yer) [/
Net ingepte per share ‘ --11‘2‘?;,423 e 29462 23,281 28415
; em)| o5 ,
“', " 'J'ﬁl;) T afe® + s ] N . N
Total assets 2,4103 2,364.3 2,355.9 2,401.6
i (billton yen) UBE T : ST
Net:assetsi«tio’/ " (479.7 G 5243 564.2 . |v 6378 ¢
(billion yen)
P oLn e SO P rALUEnG J el oL s . p — ,
State of mdjor subsidires; ete - v T
(1)  State of major subsidiaries: | - & K
. L | . Equity ,
BTN (TR voul uu oo s 0 L ownérship by T
Paid-in capital { the Company
Name (million yen) (%) ..'']" -, Main busines$
West Japan Rallway Hotel Development o | T
Toitrrit€d -7 TR el T e TR '—‘J"..-‘ig’ooa.-.'. ~ 1000+ " ©7 ' Hotels *
West Japan Railway Isetan Limited 0,000 66 7 Department store
Kyoto Station Building DevelopmentCo.;. Ltd. [ ¢ +AC00 " . 61 4 (61}9) -Realestate leasing
Nippon Travel Agency Co., Lid: © ' v7% « - g0t 79.8 ' | Trdvel‘agency
Chugoku JR Bus Company 2,840 100.0 Bus services
West Japan Railway Daily Service Net
Company 2,300 91.5 Retail sales
West Japan JR Bus Company 2,110 100.0 Bus services
Osaka Terminal Building Company 2,000 57.4 Real estate leasing
Tennoji Terminal Building Co., Lid. 1,800 61.7 Real estate leasing
JR-West Japan Real Estate & Development
Company 620 100.0 Real estate leasing
Japan Railway West Trading Company 200 67.0 (100.0) | Wholesales
JR West Japan Communications Company 200 65.0 (100.0) | Advertising services




Equity
E ' s ' : ' - LI S | 'ownerShip_bY‘! “.;-ui:,"‘.u-
Paid-in capital { the Company |

Name ... | {million yen) (%) - | .Main business

WEST JAPAN RAILWAY TECHNOS 161 62.7 Maintenance for

CORPORATION railcar facilities

West'Japdn Electric System Co., Ltd. , 81 . 515 Railway-related
. Lo N Lo electric facilities

(Note) The percentages in the parentheses répresent the Company's equlty ownershlp including
shares held indirectly through the subsidiaries of the Company .

Lt L S U

(2) State of major afﬁllated compames ‘

Equity ownership. |. . ’
Paid-in capital | by the Company " |
Name (railhion yen) " (%) - {- --Main‘business
ey
Kansai Rapid Railway Co., Ltd. ~ 75,280 23.9(24.1) Rallway servnces
Daitetsu Kogyo Co., Ltd. 101 36.9 | Gonstruction
Kose: Construction Co., Ltd. - 780 20.3 Construction

(Note) The percentages in the parentheses represent the’ Compémys ”ecjulty ownership
including shares held indirectiy through the subsidiaries. of:the: Company .,

7. Major businesses and ofﬁces B N
The major busmcsceq the Group engages in and the offices thercfor are as follows:
(1) - :__Tra.*1~portat1c;n bl:l.:ll';eSS ‘
In addition to the railway services, the Group enga?g!ég"iﬁ:'bﬁs services zirﬁd.;)th'ér' rervices.
“s The Company (Kifa-ku, Osakéi(biiy) : e

.« Chugoku JR-Bus Company (Minami-ku, Hiroshima-City):. .« 57
..* West Japan JR Rus Company (Konohana-ku, Osaka-City)
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The outline of the railway services is as follows: MEITIPURY B SRR
Cpereny o 5. ,,Routelength. . .. | Number ., Number
: Conventional [ ., = i+ |- = Of . of rolling

Offices Shinkansen railway lines Total stations stock

v e o e Ekm D sl e ok [ el G

IS LEE PRS oy '.f'l‘(28 0) Y rl (28 0) Crew. ol

Kanazawa Branch | _; 7. .. | Yoo I
e T e 60 | e 606
Kyoto Branch - 314 0 314.0 98 563
Osaka Branch . 403.3 40337777 149" 1,414
. Wakayama Branchir' -2 30y 2825 (2825 . 8640 72
aa | RobeBegiih [ ‘11.11]2_41)-3(‘.',‘._7'.»’,"r oy N »349'3'11" ,..'1:'_.:,7'7: 1,793

B M I M T

Fukuchiyama )

Branch, i g 2k, 33T A 163
Okayama 'B,amh 1578 |, o010 | o0 o 75881 ¢ 153 406
Yonago Branch 1| * 7 40 B TG0 T 0T s, 254
Hiroshima E}rancil EZE - ’95J9-3 L2697 J '255 { 645
Fukuoka Bragch'™ |"77~! 862 a0 [ty 02 887 swn o4 94 |0 o 300 - 809
(28.0) (28.0) A
Total 644.0 4,379.7 5,023.7 ‘-""'1 2‘09" T 6,725

ST P ——— o —

N (Note) " The’ kl]ometers in the parentheses are, shown separate]y for the Category III
P e rallway serv1 es (Nanao Line (between Wakura-Onsed and Anam1zu)) The

““convéntional" rallway lines .of Osaka Branch include 19.4. kilometers of the
i1 Category»ll railway services (Kansai-Airport Line (between-Rinku- Town and
T Kansal-Alrport) and JR Tozai Line (between Kyobashi and Amagasak1)) The

A NEARL G,

.- 1 " other fines are all for the Category I railtviy ‘servicts. £

T

DR “elt :'_f.—"r"_"»‘-'

" Transportation services prov1ded by usmg its

- AT . own.railway tracks. . oot il ‘
Categm‘y II rallway services: Transportation seryices prov1ded by 'leasing
' - " " "railway tracks from other operators

P ;,.:;,;Gategoxry..HI»rail'way.'services Possession' of 'railway tracks that. are ‘used by

other operators for trahsportation services

- ’,

Category [ railway serwces

(2) Sales of goods and food services

The Group engages in department store business in the Kyoto Station Building and sales
of goods and food services in major stations.

» West Japan Railway Isetan Limited (Shimogyo-ku, Kyoto-City)

» West Japan Railway Daily Service Net Company (Kita-ku, Osaka-City)
» Japan Railway West Trading Company (Suita-City, Osaka-Prefecture)
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(3)  Real estate business catt b el e T AP

.+ - The Group engages in sales and lease’ 'of real estate by use of its own real estate and
TR .operatlons of shoppmg centers coyt o
PRI 2l oo gy T ‘
» Kyoto Station Building Development Co., Ltd.-(Shimogyo-ku, Kyoto-City)
* Osaka Termina) Building Company. (Klta ku, Osaka-City)
. « Tennoji Termmal Building Ca., Ltd. (Tennoji-ku, Osaka- City) "
“ « JR-West Japan Real Estate & Development Company (Amagasak1 Clty Hyogo Prefecture)

b

(‘;" !\‘L -

(4).  Other busmesses ry,
A L) A
The Group engages-in hotel and’ advertlslng busmesses by use’of its own properties,
o= . travel agency business that has htghly synergistic, effects with its transportation services
and various construction and engineering works.

. West Japan Rallway Hotel Development Limited (Shimogyo-ku, Kyoto uty)

» Nippon Travel Agency Co., Lid: (Minato-ku, Tokyo)

« JR West Japan: Cqmmumcanons Company (Kita-ku, Osaka- City) .

* WEST JAPAN RAILWAY TECHNOS CORPORATION (Amagasakl .,1ty, Hyogo-
Préfecture) ’ _

» West Japan Electric System Cos : Ltd. (Yodogawa -k, Osaka-Otv)

.8.. State oJf:_employees_.‘. . ', - { ~‘
’ Number of employees .,

- | Classrﬁcatlon 'bybusmess segnient Mi; ‘ klrrerease or, decrease compzu ed with the
T ,' o e LRI end ofthe prev1ous ﬁscal year)
) Transportatlon busmess s S e e T 067390 1(E318)

: ' Sales of goods and }'Z)(;(i {sserwc’e’s o , \ J , _ 2681 ‘(+27)
| Real estates business | , 763  (-15)
Otirer bus)m'esses} IH :r;_: ,',;_ u S e 1431:’.20” (+567)
SRELTAE) IR AR r'_.-'Fotél. RS TEANIREE T ER R K] B DR S R 43354 {(+261)

T O A IR T

..{Note);; ‘The-number. of employees represents the number, ofithesz actually at work in
s . .the respective segments..:: '
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9. Major lenders s T e s o L sl

Lender Debt payable. ™ ic. &, subrn

. ‘ (billion yen) L
DeveIOpment‘B:anI( efJapan - 81.1 o
Mizuho Cérporate Bank/Ltd. -~ SR SR 35.3
Sumitomo Mltsm Bankmé &Jc;rporatlon 34.0 -
The Bank ofTokyo Mltsullaf;'llt l‘_IFJ Ltd. SR Al 33.6 A
The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Company, lelted , 13.0
'I:lepornzljlfe JInsu;ance Com;;a;n; ”I : [ 12.3
Resbna Bank Limited* > e 11.8
TTh S s SR p

”, Iy

I1. Matters congerning shares:,

ARt - < .
RHIRRV TS I (PN V7 2 B (1 R ¥ L LT G
1 Total number of issuable shares: 8,000,000 shares
royoroye e Ininue ity S T

2. Jotal number 'of issueéd shares: 2,000,000 shares
3. Number of shareholders: B 157940 p'e'rs'ons”"“' e h
4. Major sharcholders: ., . P R P s

AL T Lo o e - Ratio of total-~ ¢| *
TR O Tt RN T DR LI Number of shares issued shares
vt doweName. o (shares) (%o)

Japan Trustee Services Bark, thd*('ﬁ]rust Unit) 97,267 4.86
The»Més’t'e'x"Trust‘Baﬁk of Japan, Lid. (Trust Uniy” - | ¢ '72,835- “}- " "9 3 64“

. ol g et N L

M.zuho Corporate Bank, Lid. ,_J, 69,000 345

: Sumitomo:Mitsui Bankmg Corporatlon 64,000 3.20

“The' Bank(of Tokyo—Mltsublshl UFJ Ltd. 63,000 3.15

5 s, decir, Lo

Japan Trustee Serwces Bank Ltd. (Trust Unit 4) , 41,106 2.06

Ll Ol HE SN A ‘ T
“JR-West: Employee Stock»Sharmg Plan ) 39,880 1.99

Nlppon Life: Insurance Company 4"' 35,000 1.75

State Street Bank and Trust Company 505103 33,729 1.69

Thc Sum.itomo ‘Trust and Bankmg Company, Limited 32,000 1.60

(Note) ..:As 'of-March 31;: 2007, no sharcholder had shares in the number representing
ne-tenth or more of.the total number of issued shares of the Company.

“1
et g
A
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III. Matters concerning corporate officers: Y L P T

1. Names of officers, etc.: . o

Tile Name Position
Chairman Y Noritaka Kurauchi Adv1sor of Sumltomo Electric
o - Industnes Ltd
HE gL rll Crieds per oo
Director i Yoshio Tateishi . Chalrman and Representative

-~ Director 6f Omrsa’ Corporatu)n ‘

0 - 1 Lt

Director ! Akio Nomura -~ = - Chafﬁnan J and Representatwe
Director!of’ Osdka- Gas Co.,: Ltd.
and Chairman of -the | Qsaka
Chamber of Commerce and
Industry

TR

Director Satoru Sone Proféssorof Eniginicerifg !
Depanment Kogakum Umver51ty

. - L ed L
Director Tadashi Ishikawa Representatlve Partner of
g ' -~ Dh-Ebashi LPC & Partners

President and Representative  Masao Yamazaki
| REpIESe

g syubiotemn g e
Director
vt clansie e LS
Executive Vice President and ~ Kazuaki Maruo ~ Provides “genefdl’ “assistance to
Representative Director President. In charge of Railway
G : e T Operations  Headquarters  and
S Safety’_i_g_e_seareh Institute, for:
safety enhancemer)l} Lt
Executive Vice President and - Toshifumi Shiba ... Prava,dea general ass1_stance to
Representative Director™ = =7 7 7 " President,  In charge . of

Corporate ik Commumcatlon
- Department, Inquiry.: & iAuditing
. ., Department, .Finance Department
- - S T . - and Tokyo Headquarters :
Director S Ryuichiro Tsuch'iya hlIri;“."chargje “"”"f Supportmg
- S *Héadquarters' for ‘the. Victims. of
the . Derailment. Accident (on ;the
Fukuchlyamah Lme . of,  the
‘Company, " Déliberation
N v o Department . of ‘the. Deratlment
) B N Accident on'.the' Fukuchiyama
“ i o Lline . cand - General  Affairs

Department.

Vool f .

- 14.-




Title . ..~ .. ,,Name S '_Pos_i'tilon”

s N H N 2 VNN [SRSTNS. RS oo '

Director Takashi Kondo In charge  of"" Costruction
Department and  Corporate

FIVIRREY I R T R U I S L T N BRI T
) ) 1 . :, St RGSOUI'CC - Developmem
' F I B | j N A B i -\ 1 » 1 ',\ :
. : o Headquarters "
L . P TR - 11) lE e st ﬂ' fe
Director. .~ .+ . I Seishi Manabe 5-6-13» - In charge-of” Corporate Plannmg
A W veyn @ et D ww'Héadquarters banide - Personnel

ML ‘:;Dep'a_ni'he'ht_ Lt e e

‘Director, .-, : . .. -- NaokiNishikawa., . .dln gcharge-of .Safety.-Promotion

e e e Ve ey o eup o Department, Railway . Operations
Sl e s S e g caap, , Headquarters, -, for .y safety

S U 13 PN A NP0 (VAP 2P S LS UL SIS UFE LA enhancement. fa 0o

4

Director ¥ < s BN Takeshl KakluchlJ‘ - g charge of any mrssnon’spécrﬁed

TR S I .. ‘ .;'“1 Y ! ”'.‘.' IR et ik n‘ !'.' TR ITM B : by'PreS'ldent_ g e ..|r” e
- RTTH AT EEAANTE R AT S ‘_,‘:,I'._r\ Jioen J..'J" - e b, S o
Full Ume Corporate Auditor,., NoboruKoide. , ;o1 [, (L Lot oot

- LI R U 1
TR A B AR FAVE I | PRV RS L E

Full-time Corporate’Auditor " T Twasaki

MYRRLA & NN TR T I B PR .."1 ol ALl 0w -4 gt -:.’.- A HE R

Corporate Auditor Kazuo Yoshida Dean of Business Administration

cotno e e e il e Beses& anlp v e 'Rqsgal.'cb’_ .G!'.a}d“ﬁ‘?,@.c.l}o()l of
o ¢ o Kyoto-University...- .,

dedn |

e ol Boel ,.....i G o lom

. .
. TR . 7 P
NESETTER I S . Lo

Corporate Ahdrtor Lot ke Ung Y -4+ i Chairthan - ‘and’! Répresentative
T FRITLERt TR a S A I T AN (R e R l 1:. l-.',:l ?- P ‘.uDir'ector'* '_40f -uNippbn ) { Lifc
LT L LT Ln T S "')Insu'rané'e Com'pahylu [ AR

(Notea) 1. Chaizman' 'Noritaka" Kuraichi(! Director§Yoshio -Tateishi) “Aki6" Nomura,
o’ niw1 Satbru ‘Sone ‘and Tadashi Ishikawa-are "extérhal. dlreetors"as' prowded* for in
BORERE ”-fAruc.er._, ne'ml -of the- Corporahon Law of Japan, -+ %' - v Slaen on

LTSI ARTPOUNILPURPTIL IRV IPRNTLY B4s BERTOTMT Bt SVR B LU TS IS LIPS |

2. Full-time Corporate Auditor Tsutomu Iwasakii-- Corporate +Auditors Kazuo
Yoshida and Ikuo Uno are external auditors as provided for in Article 2, item
16 of the Corporation Law of Japan.

(2) Total amount of remuneration, etc. for officers

Classification Number Amount

Director 14 ¥328 million

Corporate Auditor 5 ¥73 million

Total 19 ¥401 million

(Note) The total amount of remuneration, etc. for the external officers for the fiscal year
under review was ¥88 million.
3. Matters concerning external officers
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(D

2)

‘ othg:r companies .o

State of the external officers' concurrent holding of offices of executive officers for
RV "

Extemal Dlrector Mr Yoshlo Tateishi, acting as Chairman and Representative Director
“of OMRON Corporatlon and External Director Mr. Akio Nomura, acting as Chairman
and Representative Director of Osaka Gas Co., Ltd., have business dealings with the
.- Company, . respectively.. - External C.or,p_o_rate, Audrtor Mr. lkuo Uno, acting as

.,C_hairman and . Representative Director of Nippon Life Insurance Company, has

business dealings;wi_th -_th;:,Gompany.

' ‘EXtEmal‘DifeotOr Mi: Noritaka Kurauchi has assuméd the office of external direcior of

Nlppon SheetGlass ‘€o:, Ttd.; External Director Mr. Yoshio Tateishi has assumed the
“-office 'of external-director of Dainippon Screen MFG. Co., Ltd.; and External Director
Mr. Tadashi Ishikawa hds"assumed the office of external corporate auditor of Takeda
- Pharmaceutical Company, Limited. ; External Corporate Auditor Mr. Ikuo Uno has
assumed the ofﬂcerof e'ngtemal dlrector of Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and
Fuji Kyuko Co., Ltd as well as the office of external corporate auditor of Odakyu
Electric Rallway Co. Ltd., Tanabe 'Seiyaku‘'Co., Ltd;' ' Tohoku' Electric” Power
Company, Incorporated and Sumrtortto_l ;1\5{['1_151:1]; .El;ﬂ:a'll_(‘,lal Gr?o}llpjl‘lpc::_ )

T P FERY SoenY oo A YL

Ma_]or actlvmes of the exterrllal officers during the fiscal year under rev1ew

uurmg ‘the- fiscal year under review, the Board of Directors held 12 sessions, which
were attended by’ 80%'ofthe External Directors and 80% of the External Corporate

_ - Auditors, respectively, on .average. With.their; wide experience zxnd- expertize in
- mapagement, they have expressed their opinions on matters concerning the managerial

issues of the Company, on a timely and adequate manner.

During the fiscal-year under review, the Board of Corporate. Auditors held 14 sessions;:

.. -, which,were attended,by 90%.of the External Gorporate Auditors on.2verage. With

their wide experience and. expertise in managemerpt; they have expressed their opinions
on matters concerning the execution by the Corporate Auditors of their duties on a
tlmely and adequate MANNET. |/, jprrecost o oign 0 G ety ]

! ’ * i B . Y v DN
., T 1 T B S PR ‘. . X
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IV. zMatters éoncermng account auditors: [T sk 0 s unte
L

R T DAt BT B I R SR ARNUPL LI AT IS B SR SR RP RS BTN PN

(1)- .Name of!the account auditors: ' ¢ .oty T2l Y ae e D A e :

G- -._':."f( RN T N R L e LU sl e, P SR A
Emst& Young. Shln\hhon L RS AT UE BIL VL SRR LY (R O APV LRI

S _..".'fr Cobastd. an e LT el et

(2) - Amount ofremuneratlon etc. to the; account audltors P T D AP A L

-"-J':'\ ' t . :‘ e ‘ln" [N 2‘ "‘fl. ” ' i l.’) « ” ‘ 4 I.J ,-'l’ " ’ A ')J 4 ‘JJ— ;' . .| I.'.I. -

(1) Amount of remuneratlon etc. payable for the ﬁscal year LTI

under review: ¥106 million

I i, PRI

('iii‘ Total amount of money and 'other propnetary beneﬁt y

payable by the Company and 1ts sub51d1anes ¥219 mllhon

fia ] gt [P P

(Notes) 1y “Thi-dt ount’ ‘of remuneratlon payable to ‘thie account audltors for thelr

e audtts under the' Corporatlon "Law ‘o Jaf)J h ‘the amount ‘of

S remunerataon payable for their audlts der the Set:untles and Exchange

ot s of Jdpan are hot spec1ﬁcally se’parated in the audlt corftract between

b Company dnd Emst &' YOurfg JSthlhon and cahnot be separated
<" practichlly.” Hencé, such dmbints' are’ stated co‘lleqttvely' ‘ “'I :

T,

.
seoprg l.‘[‘f- '_.f, Y pre K _"1 TS B N A AR )[ sy i3 -t .. LEOLDEY e !

'-'2' *-The' Company ‘ha§* entrusted: Emst ’& Young’Sthlhon ‘with; and- patd

PR

R remuneratlon "for advrsory sérvices on1he estabhshment and’ executlon of
2ot 6N Viitéfial contrl over firiaficiat reportmg, \bvhich Services dre not' covered
by Article 2, paragraph 1 of the ‘Certified” Public “Accoufitant” Law of
Japan
. R (O S ORL L At PL SO B e s T L4 14 [ ATV RR LS S ROL AR SURL Y oL ML L IO NN
(3) Polrfcy én determmatlon lof drsnnssai and’ non-réappmntmentm’ S o
R P TIPS LI S LI TE VIO S VR TIy LSPToAN S F PPt s SHE B TAPLIUS SERUPIS U B eIV RA I PR B

-+ I 'thé eVerit that ‘the’ AcCourit- audltors ‘are con*s1dered t0- fall Under zany of the’ items ot
Atrticle 340, paragraph 1 of the Corpotation Ldw ofJJapan ‘dr otherwise it'i§ cohsidered-
necessary by the Company, the Company shall determine to dismiss or not to reappoint

nthe account‘addltoi-sﬂl LGINag e BLLTCs LS u’f”;:iru“" LA N HE R M T T LA PP PR
dnearng b eneie e ad w T e v e sanln L

V. Systems to secure the properness of busmess activities: _ .

T S B DO SRS I T EFLA N UL R S A TP NS LAV ST B ¢TI IPRMST S HR T OLN PRI LA B g

The matters concerning the establishment of the systems to sécuré the'éxecition by
the Directors of their duties to comp}y with laws or ordinances and the Articles of
Incorporatlon and-’ other': systems to secire” the~propemess of business actlvmes of the

CompaHYaredesenbedbelo'w' TR TIaN: ot B F A N T RSP TR VPPN
T s L R A PRI AL RV I SR S LT SO TR FOTURIL S OTU RS £ B SR Y R TN A
e, e bas iy e eron Liae gt B L. .- U
1. Systems to secure thel’eXecution- by the’ Directors and ‘employees of their-duties to
comply with laws or ordinances and the Artlcles of Incorporatlon
r t . R
e A RV § PO ERVE 20 B AR Ac AN IS i

The Board of Directors of the Company shall meet once every month, in principle, to
deliberate on-important’ matters- for management report the development of execution of
business on a timely*and appropridté manner and monitor ‘the- execution by the Directors of
their duties mutually.” In addition,"to ensure the trafisparenicy and fairness of corporate
management; the Company has invited officers-with excéllent management prowess and

-17-



broad knowledge from outside of the Company ‘togive various-guidance-and proposals cn
management of the Company and conduct audits from objective perspectives since its
incorporation. As from June 2006, the Company shall: make:.a :clear-distiriction between:
Directors to execute business (concurrently serving as Executive Officers) and Directors to
engage exclusively in monitoring and supervision and.increase:the  number: of external
Directors, appoint the "Chairman", who shall act as chairman of the Board of Directors, from
among the external Directors and. improve:the system: of .distributing, information to the
external Directors to strengthen its functions of momtorlng and superv151on of corporate

. -

management. B P TR
ST TR T ST IR R

With regard to compliance with law, the "Compllance Committee" yvrth the President
actlng as, chamnan shiall, in accordance w1th the “Corporate Phllosophy" 1nst1tuted in April
eatabllshment ,of internal systems and rules therefor, keep track of risks,and devise necessary
measures thcrcfor promote vanous tralmng and educatlonal campalgns and examine and
evaluate the schemes for egsurmg comphance In addmon thc Company shall familiarize
all ofﬁcer$ and employee; with, the, "Codc of EtthS for Employees" and the "Ethics Office"
as consultative ofﬁce 10, fnrthe; efi;ure; compllance iWI;th Taw’ and corporate ethics. With
regard to the execyition by the Dlrectors and employees. of thelr d}mes the Company shall
ensure transparency ‘thereof” by dewsmg schemes that may allow checking functions,
mcludlng a, system, pf.- c1rculatmg .requests: for, manggerial decisiony 'as viell as various
commlttees from time fo-time, .and make the Inqulry,& Audmng,Departrnent responsible
m;ternal aqdlts, ,aud;t b,usmes,s of the Company In general from the pE:I‘SpeCtIVCS of compliance
with laws or ordinances and regulatlor;s GE 0 dearyer e 5 i :

Furthermore, for the purpose of the establishment of systems to evaluate and audit
internal control over financial .reporting, the.Company.shall institute.a."Team tc, Bromote
Evaluation of Internal Control over Financial Reporting” to promote the establishment of
internal .control to ensure credibility of: financial reporting, the documentation thereof and the
evaluatlon and reporting.of the. effectlvcness thereof. . . . e 0L

!IM AN i‘l”"". LR ‘...‘:A\I '.'—rr;: o LE] (|| —Jl]-' i L P .4-’

Through these measures, the Company shall endeavor to impreve:its svstems te ensure

compliance with law or otherwise in its business operations in general.

. efitar nn et Do e R DTI st RT e L e TL R
2. Systems concerning storage and management of information on the executlon by the
Dlrectors of their duties . , - ... ;. ot '::;.".'f/':‘":r,;-'.- OF -f."r'.::;'!"u' SLlnn e
) Ry i1 ; Conone g e gl T RO LTI L S LI AL T

. Pursuant to the document management manuale of the.. Company, 1nf0rmat10n on. the
execution by the Directors of their duties shall be prepared, storedland managed properly by:
the respective sections in charge thereof and shall be made available for inspection by the
Directors and Corporate Auditors at all times whenever necessary. - ...;,,. . .-y s

PN AT T T
3. Regulations concerning management of exposure to the risk of loss and other systemns
L
Takmg seriously that on Aprll 25, 2005 it. caused- a very grave accident to occur
between Tsukaguchi and Amagasakll on thc!Fuknchlyarna Line in which 106 lives were
claimed and, more than 500 passengers were injured, and-with a resolve never to permit the

occurrence of such any accident, the Company shall implement measures both in its software

HE "|.'a‘.,_:
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and hardware infrastructuresin accordance with'its "Safety Enhancement Plan!" submitted to™
the Minister of Land, Infrastructure and Transport on May 31,:2005; and-also’ improve and :
strengthen its safety measures by establishing a "Safety Advisory Committee” and a

"President's Special “tAide":.* In" addition, with the' understanding :that: th&:steady

implementation 'of the plar will be the way“to restore the confidence of 'our customers and the)
society, the Company shall exert its all-out efforts to ensure its newly.formulated 'Corporate-
Philosophy" and "Safety Charter” to be fully understood by all employees and put the plan

into’ practice- company-wide - Furthermiore, «the :Company shall build: a™ stronger’ safety
management system based on its "RailwaySafety. Managément ;Manual" 'instituted. in::
accordance with the amended Railway Business Law of Japan, enforced in October 2006.

Additionally, the "Risk-Mariagement Committee" With the Président acting'as,chairman shall

keep track of risks'and-critical factors:that may-have inaterial-effects on inanagement of the’
Company, prepare manuals and deliberate on'and:determine’itportant ‘policies’ to respond:.
thereto, prepare 1o establish a rapid initial response system and implement appropriate

meéasures in the event of any iserious crisis, and examine’ and evaluaté' the: nsk management

schemes and systems. LU e i o e Teg L no

Through! thesevefforts, ;the Company's shalls bmld u;yrdlsystem for dpprbpﬂatc risk:
management in its business activities in general’ v.:bu/ crcs Y oA e :

T Systems to'secure efficient execution by the Directors of their duties? t./zo1its .

Coamn D UEUYINGUG WD D00 It BN e, i ) fi' S ‘
~: /The Dlrectors in' charge of them respective sections shall, based on the general. business -
plan determined by-the:Board of Directors .at the beginning of edch.fiscal year, execute their-
duties properly with regard to-the measures:of the respective sections in ‘accordance with the':
authority'and decision-making. rules unider: the . Company's- regulatlons of its' otgamzatlon and i
execution of business, w01 5 = ururr tal cone bar s, ruisy Yo e inl e e
rerrls i e L f0n i L T pettbgerlen oA s ) to L nat oo

The Company has established an Executive Committee consisting of the
Representative Directorstiand-; Executive’: Qfficers » of1 the »Company :to. ‘d¢liberdte on*
fundamental matters for execution of business, and also introduced a system of executive
officers 10! delegate authorities to'the Executive:Officérs,:whereby ensufing stronger functlons
to supermse the. Board.ofDirectbrs and specdler exccuhon of thcu' daties. il sl o LS
ORI T S TR TIPS B LR 1LLOY L SIS (T DI IE R UGS RN L SOTTRRS I I

5. Systemsitdisecure: the:propemessof business: actwmes of the corporate. grOUp iy

- Atsitsi"Compliance: Committee”. and "Risk.Management Committee”; the Company
shall, determine policiesion compliance andrrisk: management .of the :whole Group, and each
group company shall take measures to establish committees.iand':regulations, whereby’
formulating a system for strong compliance and appropriate risk management of the whole
Group. In addition, at its "Ethics Office", the Company shall respond to consultations
concerning any group company, whereby ensuring strict corporate ethics of the whole Group.

With regard to important managerial matters of the group companies, the Company
shall establish a system to allow them to consult with the Company in advance, and the
Company shall make its officers assume the offices of directors and corporate auditors of its
important group companies to ensure legitimate and effective management of the Group.
Furthermore, for the purpose of its internal audits, the Company shall, whenever necessary,
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determine. if .laws' or ordmancesi and : regulatrons concermng -execution -of business -of- the
groupcompanles are observed Pl e L L RT ,'m.-.f o R P
R O A L I UL A LTS Y TS
- With :regard to: the "eyaluation of- internal: control OVer; ﬁnancral _reporting”, the
Company .shall . promote . its -group-wide efforts as the busiress.on_a, consolidated :basis s
subjected'to such eva]uatlon,f, B S U S TN S SRR

PR e L T O Y SR SN IO R NP SRR DRI I pe et

‘.-Jil' O LD ta L A i NS B IR G ), : HIRUR N SR

6..:-'xMatters-concerning the. employees‘to assrst the Corporate Auditors- to execute their
dutles and their independence:from;the Directors .- " o1 o feeerd roaLn e ar

ST P Lt QNI EULE OIS DR B ot

. : ce . Y . - 5. .-' - M FEOR
LIUCI L A S S SLP TS BYS S AL P i O S osan e LuDnoanr ot e uenh

.j Th-.Companv has; appomted 1ts employees as;the Corporate, Auditors' staff to; engage
exclusively in.assisting the Corporate Auditors and; they :shall executeitheir duties under the
orders and instructions of the Corporate Auditors.. . .~ to6 claiiisi, J‘:..-'-,:-':" Lo

.o . .
T o ‘,'l L e e et . ,..,., et [I,,‘, o

-t vait” . i tir

1 The. Company shall’ ‘make(thelrupersonnel changes .and ,evaluaflons by, takmg mtc
consideration the opinions of the Corporate Auditors. cen o b e

. .
Ie. N o

7. System- for reports, by, Directors.and employees-to the: Corporafe Audltorstand other
systems for reporting to the Corporate Auditors. 1.« 0 -y ot v inamy L
The Directors, Executive Officers arid employees:shall give ite the -Corporate -Auditors
or the Board of Corporate Auditors reports promptly upon the occurrence of any grave
accident; any. act in violation of any law or,ordinance or: the Articles’of Incorporation or any
event that-may. cause.material ' damage ‘to the’ Company;:as’ -wellas ‘reports on:the state of
performance of internal -audits, -the-particularsof; information,.provided . with - the~"Ethics
Office”, the particulars, of: the measures, taken by .theiPresident's. Special: ‘Aide; the.details of
business and problems of each section and such other matters as requested by ;the: Corporate
Auditors or the Board of Corporate Auditors from tlme to time and on a regular basis.
TT N SR L R 00 B AL SO I B A N b S R B I R SRR s RO TR
8. . Ot.her systems to ensure effective audits. by the Corporate Audltora AR CRRIR
o O o "-'; -’I".’u.s-l:..r'z.."'.'l’t'J NI TIP AT PN A A e FAAT
The Dlrectors ofv the, Company, -shall’ formulate systems necessary for. the . Corporate
Audltors to expedlently ‘perform audits, including. those:to allow: the Corporate, Auditors to
atiend important meetings, inspect decision documents, cooperate with its internal audit

section and:account auditors.and exchange opinions with the Representative Dirsctors.:
-In. addition; the sections: respons: ‘ble’ for the ‘business -offices, of the. Company. shall

coordmate .and cooperate with each:other to. allow the - Corporate Auditors ‘o visit:the-cffices
to perform effective and:efficient audits. ‘el -0 . e o To s e
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Voo (As of March 31, 2007) S e
ASSETS-‘. O VD RUUR B V7 LTt Y E PR AT S (mil]ion'yen)
Current assets e e MR e e ~226'100
Cash and deposns ....... ' .....:........,.-.-.r....r.'.:..'.:.-a.-,-.:...-.:..-: ..... hcntiene et e 197,814

( *; Trade notes. and accounts receivable......ocovoiiimriiiiineiiriiiiee e A...;..zzx.-.'...-_’!l9,069

i+ Railway fares receivable..........oeeoreeornee!adianit st L o s r22',667

Y ATCOUNLS TECEIVADIE ...vvvvvrverasssrspsernrrsens et 31,605
. Inventories.........ooverenenne . errerneens _ preenibalees 19,379

- - Deferred tax assets ..... , wrrmeeesreeesnreens _ .’. : n18 679
.~ Other current assets e eeiernme et et eesrapeans eeeererrrp———— Lotdt L e hit L0 37.281
Less allowance for doubtful accounts feeepreenseeepeapeeearperasrrarerseernresasessseens et o (397)

U e e e e e B L P P YAV L P DA |

Fixed.assets: . . . e e e n23175,484
i[anglble fixed @SSELS: . .. o sl i L0,973,146
. Buildings and StIUCIUIES. .....cc.romsmrerrserrsrarresrersarsesrrerseearreessadyocionsbessnneesnianiadit £ 907,045

.- Machinery, equipment . and transport eqmpment reepeepene s b it - 254,147

7 1 s« AU 658 519
t CONSIUCLION IN PIOZTESS ..eevirreirieneeerreenierseesareseseessesseesaesesesensennans Al ; 66,296 ;¢
cher tangible fixed assets............. eortsasessrerssssesssssasspartenaseseasprstenserrerenrerinene it D2 T 138
............................ PRI+ Wes s ST A STO B
-Intanglble ﬁXCd assets: . .1 IR e 2oL o pety I Ywil ey v FTEL 22 197
. VPR VR AR LI S T
:Invest.ments and other assetS‘ o Coesic gt g e 180,139
_ . fotieintens .. . 64,847
Deferred tax assets..._.,.,...\..._....m e 3Ty e talE i i) 92,698
- Other investments and other assets... : tiealias W 23,253
~ Less allowance for doubtful accounts...._...._..,._.,._...,_.,. ......... ISR AR . (660)

crerparpaszrerrene

. Ce e g
{ ' - . ,.':I ..l'._'

Deferred assets 82
B SRR A

TOTAL ASSETS 2401661

(Note)’ Plgures are indicated by discarding fractions of one million yen. o

[
1
. .L" e et e e eeee e e aaanaeas e e .e I ) - L J.,J
\
' ir.
.
- B i s
PR ML)
[ svdl!
3, ' )
i 'l
o - .
s i
t 1]
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LIABILITIES

' BT T T S I S ITE S B L
Current liabilities: L R A I 528,757
. {Irade notes and accounts payable .................................................................. 50,272¢ -
Short-term borTOWINGS ......oovie i 13,137
-1 Gurrent portion of long-term debt.......cccoveiiirinninie e 2.7 49,352
Current portion of long-term payables.to the acqulsmon of rallway oo .
CPIOPETHES ....cvevvctreiieae i rerebese e e seae e ea e et 20 - 36,530
IRZ Current portion of long-term.payables.............. S -..;-.....:.'r‘..'.-i'.-..J.f‘.!..‘:f‘..F.f‘:}..-.:s.f.'- ©. 31
. tAccounts payable. ........c.oocoeeieeeiinn. S v fl 24,567
. Accrued consumption taxes.................... e S s s s 5,312
v Accrued INCOME tax oovvvereveveoeverenenenns v SR A KO S 21 ,713
12U Railway. deposits received.......coooeieieceene S SUBVVRURIOR LRl 47,764
' Deposits.... Lo L .'66,601
Prepaid rallway fares recelved 30,507
© - AQVANCES TECEIVEA ...ttt s s ene et sa s s e nae e 156,475~
Deferred tax liabilities.........coovcveeicrieeiiieieicaeieecis s Ui latiLe L 198
Allowance for bONUSES.......ccovvieicici i e i e . 34,348
Other current habilities ............50 . R S U S S IR IEPS YRR S 31,942
Long iterm l]abﬂ]t]es ................. . e R L T "1 23'5 060
P BONAS e e e BT .5§:£.'Ss.:..'.'.1 ............. 249,981
Long-term debt.........ooiiie e 223,211
" Long-term payables to the acquisition of railway properties ..ok %01k 427,372
Long-term payables ..........cocorrieiee e 316
Deferred tax liabilities..........oo..oeeiiveiceneieieec e, RO RSN W IR 1 113
Letirement allowances for. employees......... . cRAL { -.2. 213,693
Allowance for quake-proof reinforcement measures............ e 9,931

Allowance for environment and safety measures %...........J RTINS 1,426
Negative goodwill........... e e e AL LT S S S Ladd 6. . 238
Other long-term labilities ..........ccccoeiiiiiieii e et 96,773
Y S
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,763,817
NET ASSETS
Shareholders' equity e mae e - S9R331
COMMON STOCK 1ottt e s e e e ee e s e abeeesreeanrssenteesne 100,000
Capital SUIPIUS ..o e 55,000
Retained CarmiNES......cciieuvirrer e eceeees e cee et eree e e b e e ebe s e raeeas e ieeanseenes 443,658
Treasury StOCK .. cc.iiiiiiei ettt st ne s (327)
Evaluation and exchange differences, e1C. .......ccccovveiivveeicreeeeie e 9,212
Evaluation difference on other SECUITHES. ......c.coioveviecieeee e 8,864
Deferred hedge income (10SS) ......oovoieeiiviiniiiice e 348
IMINOMIEY INTETESTS ...ieuiiviieieiet ettt ettt eeeeee et e e et e s esaene et e sy emsessernnennsnene 30,305
TOTAL NET ASSETS 637,849
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,401,667

(Note) Figures are indicated by discarding fractions of one million yen.
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_ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

(For the period from Aprll 1; 2006 to March 31 ,2007)

(million yen)

Operating revenues
Operating expenses

Transportation and other services and cost of
sales
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating income

Non-operating income- \
Interest and dividend income
Equity in earnings of affiliates
Other income

Non-operating expenses  =°
Interest expenses '
Other expenses

Recurring profit

— -

Extraordinary profits: - ' R
Proceeds from construction contract
Gain on sale of fiXed assets
COthers

Extraordinary expenses:
Loss.on reductlon entry of proceeds from
construction
Othe.rs

Income before income tax A
Corporatlon inhabitant and enterpnse taxes R
Income taxas - deferred - " B
Minority interests

[

Net income: o3

919,204

208,295 .

331
1,016
5,769

379985

1,006 &

31,714
9,993
5,621

31,076
19,534

1,262,935

1,127,593

135341 -

100, §72 |7
44320 |7
2,816)]

2,576 <

P\
1.

56,791 | l

b

(Note) Fig_'l.'ires are \ndicated by discarding fractions of one million yen‘:'

-
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im0 ai A 'Notes to Consohdated Fmanclal Statements‘ b
.l" Joo U RIYN) Pl o ’)4‘

(F or the perlod from Aprll 1 2006 to March 3] 2007)

. . M . ", . PR PR e
TVILIN ST ] O T e R R J PRI N R ) K ! [T M LA

1 1
! PP Y . ! oy, b i, .‘ : N ‘l

. .' e ,(N_ote) Flgures are md;cated by dlscqrélpg ffactlons of one m11110n yen ’

I. Notes on important information constituting the basis of preparation of consolidated”

ﬁqancu;l statements ooy g e J.-'. Y IR (A FY RV S A AR S

! SLIEOT PO B I 'u(n TR Ul FL I AR R S D g N I A L FURE ST
1. Matters concemmg the scope ofconsolldatlon. g anr Co L
.. b . " . " . . P

(1) Number of consolidated subsidiaries: 67, .-

EPE R oL AL I 1 PSRRI .

The consolidated subsidiaries of:-the ;Company .are:: West™ Japan . Railway'.Hotel
Development Limited, West Japan Railway Isetan Limited, Kyoto Station Building
Development Co., Ltd., Nippon Travel Agency Co., Ltd. Chugoku JR Bus Company,
West Japan Rallway Dally Service Net Company, West J apan TR Bus Company, Osaka
Terminal Building Company, Tenngji Terminal Building Co., Ltd., JR-West Japan Real
Estate & Development Company, Japan Railway “West' Tradlng ‘Company; JR West
Japan Communications Company, WEST JAPAN RAILWAY TECHNOS
»CORPORATION ‘West.J apan EledtriciSystem Co., Ltd. and. 53 others..

Fumeln o e o oL Sl o0 RS i

.

As'of JuIy 112006; Akashi Station'Céfiter Co., Ltd. and Ashiya Station Building Co.,
Ltd:: were merged into. Kobe ¢ Station’ Development Co., Ltd., a surviving company,
-whose'hame has been changed to Kobe.S€ Development Co Ltd.

TS S
(2) The Company has 82 non-consolidated subsidiaries, including Osaka Energy Service Co.,
. Ltd.-.iThese’ companies--arerexcluded ifrom-thescope. of, consolidation, because their
aggregate amounts of total assets, net-sales, net income or loss (equal to the equity share)
and retained earnings (equal to the equity share} do not have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements. T T B AN

2. Matters concemmg the application of the equlty method )
]

R HTIN LT R THE A S ML A IR LRLOR (IS PUB I AR
(1) The Company'ha§ no non-cofisolidated 'sub51d1ary’ subject to the equity method.

(2) The eqdlty :method is applled to the mvestments in four affihated compames Kansai
...Rapid;Railway Co., Ltd:;,Daitetsu; Kogyo Co.,.Ltd., Kosel Construction. Co.{ Ltd., and

Railway Information Systems Co., Ltd. e

(3)° These: 82" 'on=consolidatéd “Subsidiaries” a:nd 14 affiliated: compames including Nara
Hotel Co., Ltd. are excluded from the scopé ‘of the application of the equity method,
because their aggregate amounts of net income or loss (equal to the equity share) and
retained earnings (equal to the equity share) do not have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

3. Matters concerning the fiscal years of the consolidated subsidiaries

-25 -



The date of the closing of accounts of-Nippon Travel Agency,Co., Ltd. is December 31
of each year and its finagcial statements as, of the date of the closmg of accounts are used for
the purpose of preparing the’ consolidated financial ‘stitements. Slgmﬁcant transactions up
to the date of the closing of consolidated accounts are adequately adjusted for the purpose of
consolidation. The date of the closing of accounts of any other consolidated subsidiary is
March- 31+ 6f ‘each Year, “which’ corresponds “to the*'date of “the closing of consolidated
accounts.

P T S T D O I AT I PR IERTE RNt AT LU S SRR LT B

The fiscal year of Daitetsu Kogyo Co., Ltd., an equity-method affiliated ‘ré:o‘r:ftpajtylulwz;s
changed. Consequently, its fiscal year ended March 31 2007 was 13 months covermg the

0 Al

period from March 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007, " ¢ RASEEER
4. Matters concerning the accounting standards

(1) - ‘Basis' and method of valdation. oflmportant assets: fui’-‘-:ﬁ,.-f- R

R N ! Saal i.: ULl Lo BoLansh Tl D e
P T S B e SRR DY S S RN Spt4
(1) Marketab]e see‘urlttes e POREL i P e
PN TR B AT TR (RS S I E LS O T BT 2 A T
l - - \ . . O ; H
b U L A R U S A ANV MW A T WL G S
Other marl-geta le secunties et L e 0T et i S L
ﬂrr‘.'.‘tf:."“l :.f ri fl /\I [ iJ|, inn ‘:l‘,) )-f”“ RGN "")/ 10

Those with-market value: - - At'market value,'determingd by marke',t prlces
etc. as of the close of the fiscal year

Cai e e i ;,(R@valuatign differences are all transferred
oo 0 ameed s -directly 1o - niets assets). . Selling. «costs are
e o iwed i Ldetermined pripcipally by—the 'moving avirage
method.)
P - vt b tmnb e e s LY sl snae Loun
T Thf\ € mthcut marketfval‘ue T At CoSt, determmed prl‘nc1pall'y by the-moving
R N o average method 160 "0 2 ni i TIRRUIGS
I OO P ST LV RN Pk FLOCAN AL ST L DURD DS ORI PP VLN Y 38 LU Pl
(ii) Inventories: Loy Do .;'—:iu;ztf',;:,
! "'f'l’,a....-.."\ i’:tlm”,l‘ﬂl' AT '
Goods: At cost, determined principally by the retail 1nventory
SR RURI TP method,and.the latest purchase costmethod. .
Real estate for sale ' At cost, determmed by the 1dent1t‘1ﬁed cost metttoc:iﬂ'
’ PN . [ - ‘.\"4 H i F .-..EJ ‘
. Work in process: ® . At cost; determmed pnncxpally by ther identified ‘cost
method pod R I T AP AT

Materials and supplies: - At.cost, determined principally by the moving average
method .

L
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(2) Method of depremation ofi 1mportant deprec1able assets:

R T TR A i AT AT I A FOPS L SRR SR N ISP L AT ANy
<o Tangible fixed assets:o..o7i i runer el e g
U T I VU B S oY SEAYT SN X FVIE SN { UVLR O PRI IS

nole s ‘Tangible'fixed assets are depreciated prmmpalLyby the:declining balance method,;
provided, however, that the replacement cost method.is applicable to replacement
assets for railway services.

e + .;.
IFERA

IRy TSI N ek BONTTL LT e et e e M

(1) Intanglble fixed assets: OE BRI A T 1 AR

Intangible fixed assets: are -depreciated.by the $traight-line method. :'Software for
internal use is amortized by the straight line method on the estimated useful life of

.v.' o internal use. (ﬁveyears) DT LT T Ul et ULt st L]
! s

Slaa e et vy s o e ede e Ly o L m L
RN (m) Long-term prepaid expenses: ", . Jbrr e ey e 0 pe ST
RO NS TS 0 B R PR Y T A

Long-tenn prepaid expenses are written off in equal amounts.
T I AR T R L R R R L R TH I PR RO P TP I {1 SO [0 SOVR P SR { ERP R
(3) rMethod oftreatment ofdeferred*assetsn S O MR TR F VIR SR T
e dl e b s L e e D essob st sl Tneer o

Bond issuing expenses are all-treatéd:a$expenses upon. paymentithereof VUL

Nevelopment expenses.ofithe consolidated-subsidiaries are amortized.regularly over their
respective effective periods.

LT "“ 511 FON IR MO LM PR D RIPT L TS P
(4) Basis for accountmg for 1mportant allowances and accrued llabilmes
selnnl e iy e B g fezogr U o anentonyu i G0 o0
o (1)  Al'owance for doubtful: accounts. ot RJeds o Wt tA Lenan T
e o i i o bearb e wuu s s e Tty 000 g no

...~ To meet:losses fiom loanidefault;. the Group.sets aside an estimated'uncollectible
amount,! by: taking :into:consideration. the -actual lossnrate. in‘respect: 6f general
credits and the individual possibilities of collection in respect of specific claims,
such as probable nonsperforming credits:ror? of s ol o s Ll L O

- (1Y) Allowance fosbonuses: vt rosriit vin Ly Gt nGale o e o Ll

T P O B T IS e T ) SO L SR T+ 1o o B O LI ¢1 IR PR AL
". . To meet.the payment-of bonuses to.employees; -the Group-sets as.:de an estimated
¢+ aoalamount ofibonuses to be paid for each-currént fiscal year. -+ .0 v’ o s
Ry A AR

(iii) Retirement allowances for employees:
Tl .-xhr S e VIR JLLL0 v T DAL S oLt EL N AU LI S ’ .
‘.. Lo Tormeet the paymient of re‘tirement benefits.to .employees, the - Group prov1des an
) . amount, based on:estimated.retirement’ beneﬁtmbligations and pension plan assets

as of the close of each current fiscal year...;s. ror e ot

The difference of ¥321,242 million upon the change of accounting standards for
employee retirement benefits is treated as expenses, and is amortized principally on
a straight-line basis for a period of 10 years.
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LR N R R T L I R TR GO B th e :
Actuarial differences are treated pr1nc1pally as expenses from the fiscal year next
following the fiscal year when such differences. .occur, and- are.: amertized
principally on a straight-line basis for a specific period of years (principally, 10
: years) hot- exceeding the.average remaining years 1of service of- employees when

H

- tsuch.différences:occuriior: . vt s hen LTl meLenn e

e v -
ey b Ve Lt
A -'n ] i

e

Prior service cost is amortized as an extraordlnary expense in a lump sum in the
fiscal year the Group incurs such cost. R R (S A

(iv) ‘Allowance for quake: proof reinforcement measures. ... .- i

SO ET TP TELIS EN N VAN L TR A P STLE NI ST IR Lot SRR LIV

To meet the payment for expenses including removal and.restoration costs, relating
to quake-proof reinforcement works of the columns of its elevated bridges of the
Shinkansen Line, the Group provides an amount of;expenses:reasonably ‘estimated
at the close of each current fiscal year.

e .h. oo NI B BT S S I S S ULV S I !

The quake-proof remforcement works are planned to be completed no later than the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2009, by taking.into constderation that the' colurmns of
the elevated bridges of the Joetsu Shinkansen Line were damaged by the Niigata

Chuetsu Earthquake-that tock place.on October 23,2004 = e nrs o G i

i

- ..+« .No amount of expenses that:cannot-réasonably be estimated at present is-proviaed.

5)

I AR ] J'J..“. L

(v) Allowance for enwronment and safety measures
Tt I B KON 130 T Ut o1 (TRt R Tt SRR RUS

To meet the payment for expenses of disposal of PCB and other wastes, the Group
provides an amount of expenses reasonably estimated ‘at.the close.cf each current
fiscal year. The estimated amount is calculated based on the unit cost putlicized

".. by Japan: Environment Safety- Co.; Tutd!: (JESCO). . No amouint. ¢ ('xlpenses of
' dlsposal that cannot reasonably be estlmated at prescnt 1s p10v1ded N
'-1 'J'.'f- HEERP e R ’ T .._.H-’J A .-'. EERE [ !'_»‘ oo i'l

Accounting treatment of proceeds from: constructlon contract R A R T

For the purpose of construction to elevate railway tracks-and other'works for i*s railway
operations, the Company receives from local municipal entities contributions to pay for

;.part of such construction. - Anamount-equivalent {0 such: contributions i3:'deducted

directly from acquisition. costs.of the fixéd-asséts so; acquired:upon. the completion of
such construction.
A A A L O

In the consolidated statement of income, the Group accounts for such contrlbunons

-recelved for construction as an extraordinary. profit.and such.amount directly. deducted

from acquisition costs of the fixed.assets, zs"a loss on reductlon entry of proceeds from
construction, as an extraordinary expense:. ..u i © U7 L3 gt
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(6) Accounting treatment of consumption taxes:

Consumption taxes are excluded from each account subject'to such taxes.”. e.0 = 07

. . I I T AR
5. Matters concerning the valuation of assets and liabilities of consolidatéd subsidiaries:

Assets and liabilities of the consolidated subsidiaries are valuated bas'e'd"dn thie overall
market value method.

Soe e 7Y S
6. . Majtters concerning the amortization of goodwill and negative goodwill:;

i Goodwill‘and negative goodwill are amortized equally over five years.
’ \J( f e

7 Changes in the important matters forming the basns of preparatlon of consolldated
financial statements:

(1) Accounting Standard for Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance Sheet:! it " .0~

As.from the fiscal year under review, the "Accounting Standard for Presentation of Net

Assets_in the Balance Sheet” (the Accounting Standards Board of Japan ("ASBJ")
"Corporate Accounting Standard No.5, December”9“2005) and’ ‘the’! "Implementatlon

lS”n.eet" (ASBJ Corporate Accounting Standard Implementatlon Gu1dance No.8§,
" Dedkmbeér & 2005) are applicable.

'The arHo{mt eqmvéledt to the’ pt‘evtoiis tofal sharehdlders equltSI is ¥607 {95 fmlllon
i Gt

RE TN T ':.-‘L-_ AN 1R B LI 2L TSN L b
1

YYDy g ri' TR BAPSTRVANTIS TR

AN r

(2) Accounh’ng Stakidard’ for Fifancal Insn'ument’s ,
“Leod lin e PRI L) T RLET FUCLSOIISTT T el ion o 1 _’15-» -
As from the fiscal year under review, the "Accounting Standard "for - FihAncial
Instruments" (ASBJ Corporate Accountmg Standard No. 10 amended on August 11,
. 2006Y i applicable. Consequently ¥18 illion oF bond didéoutif that acchied tpon the
issuance of the 12th Bonds (on July 28, 2006) and the 13th, Bonds (on February 19
' 2007) was deducted diféctiy from the' amc)unt df the Bonds it oot anrh

b JJ". Jooa 5'5"':'4:.‘4:“-.'".

(3) Accounting Standard for Business Combinations:

As from the fiscal year under review, the "Accounting Standard for Business
Combinations” (the Business Accounting Council, October 31, 2003) and the
"Implementation Guidance on the Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and
the Accounting Standard for Divestitures, Etc." (ASBJ Corporate Accounting Standard
Implementation Guidance No.10, amended on December 22, 2006) are applicable.

(4) Accounting Treatment of Deferred Assets:

As from the fiscal year under review, the "Interim Measures for Accounting Treatment of
Deferred Assets" (ASBJ Practical Measures Report No.19, August 11, 2006) is
applicable.

-29 -



II. Notes to consclidated balance sheet,etc. . v 0.0 0. L CoapnE L)
l. Assetspledged . ., . . y SN

. Assets pledged:

Deposits ¥230 million

Buildings and sfructures ™ - -t 0 U8 T Uy 1 674 million
Land - - v o o e s e b ¥190 million
~ Investment in securities _ ¥269 million

Total ' ‘ ¥22 364 ml‘hon
Secured liabilities: . . . ; e Y T B S LA S SV o)

NN RIS B

Long term debt . A T T ¥6 460 mllllon
SOOI S TS L onsie el R O L I

Curren. porthn of]ong term debt q © G peqat oot - ‘ ¥650 mt]llon

L - 'IJ“J

AL

Other current liabilities - ‘5 1o 'iu'.' LT T e '¥2 103 mllhon
LT i e L;i'...:'-’:?-:‘. BT Ao T N
Total ’ i, s A0 ¥9 2]3 mllllon

In additipn,. pursuant to Article.7 of the. Supplementary. Provisions, to, the Law to

Amnend Part of the Law Concemmg Passenger Rallway Compamés‘ahd the Japan
Freight Railway Company (2001 Law No. 61) of Japan, the entire. progerty of the
Company is subject to statutory preferent1al rlghts for the ‘security of all “bonds

(¥175,000m11110n). i o . . Y

I P TN [P N A T UER I il g P

i .. " . Crs ey, TR -

2. Accumulated degrematlon of tanglble “'}xed a‘;sets , !;J:-‘ ' ¥2 563 530 rmlllon
f FTCI I -1 R AT S AR I S : bR 'f, Lt e
3 Accumulated contnbutlons for c‘onqtructlon dlrectlv deducted L PR
from acquisition costs of fixed assets’ ¥501 302 mllllon
‘ 3 . T
' - ) i 1o 1 - eyt
+ 1 f 1 i . N r
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BN DT

(million yen)

[ Yo MPAC A

4. Particulars of guarantee obligations:

. Guarantee Guarantee amount | Details of guarantied dbligdtions
Osaka Soto-Kanjo Rallway oa 50000 Y 'Commltment to guarantee for
(~-" Co. Ltd Cwr vet - | loans' from financial institutions
4+ BN R SRR B I
Nlchlryo Servrce Co Ltd 399 Guarantee for sale of JR-tickets.on.
) R 7 . con51gnment Fovver oo
"Nichiryo-OMC Co., Ltd. " 238 Guarantee for payment for: a1r :
) , ) fares - LUl
Others (5. companics), 381
Total” M 6020 "

5. Matters concermng the train accident on the Fukuchtyama Line:
Tt B B I B L e T VI S M LA S

Expenses resulting from the-- tram acc1der.t on: the 'Fukuchlyama 'Lme ‘mcludmg
compensation, are anticipated. However, it is, difficult to reasonably estimate the

B

’

I UL A A SRS

)1f{|

amount thereof at present.,

I1I.

1. Matters concermng the class and number of shares issited and ciutstatndmg R

ct
o

UM

LRI L

TRAS e R

' '.',l i i

s M)

PRTTR
o cd

Notes to consolidated statement of changes in shareholders equ1ty, etc.
Ot

1 .2A|""‘)

.ot

[ I A H
Ly

Fui vl

Number of shares as

Increase in the

Decrease in the

Number of shares as,

Class of March 31, 2006 | number of shares number of shares | of March 31, 2007
(shares) during the year during the year (shares)
Shares of 2,000,000 - e e 2,000,000

common stock

2. Matters concerning the class and number of shares of treasury stock . -

K

Number of shar:s as

Increase in the

Decrease in-the: -

Number-of;shares as’

Class of March 31, 2006 | number of shares number of shares | of March 31,2007
(shares) during the year during the year (_shares)
Shares of 885 i i 885

common stock
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3. Matters concemmg dividends

(l) Amount of dividends paid .,

e | i eges oo Total amount 1 Amount of , e
Resolution, ....| . Classof.. [-ofdividends | dividend per Effective
shares (million yen) | share (yen) Record date date
i ary N [ (S K ' Hi

Clrdrrrary General Shares of
Meeting of Common 6.000 3.000 March 31, June 26,
shigie - i i
Meetingofthe | o | . | . -
Board of Directors 3221{:0(:‘ 6.000 3.000 Septefnber 30, | 'December 8,
lzu(:}l(;i6on October 31, " tock _ 2006 2006

4

'

-
r

(’) Dividends the record date for Wthh fa]ls durmg the ﬁsca] year under review but the
. effective date for whlch faHQ durmg the next ﬁ%d' year L

-9

- "Total Amount of '5"
Resolution amount of dividend *j - o
Class of dividends | Source of | per share Record Effective
shares (million yen) | dividends (ven) date date
Ordinary General | i, /i o o e L T o
Meeting of Shares of
Shareholders to  |,-.common: .| ;. 6,000 | l::::::ecsl +.3,000 - Mf’izrgg—?-l.’ '..IuhnfO%S,
be held on June ~ stock ‘g e v
2},2007 LIS L P f o fe e
1 O [ o
IV. Notes 1o information per share
1. Net assets per share» ¥303,906.52
2. - Net income per share: -t - ¥28:415:07

Y
PI M

PRI

e
[l PR
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BALANCE SHEET SN
SR (As of March 31, 2007) ) " e
iy Rh '-fJAi. " :
"ASTSEETS e s e e e e e eraeens e e e . '.:. s 5 t('r.ﬁilhon Xen)

oL e N {'{l P

curfem‘assets-*-« T R B T g
- Cash and deposits........ i T .'f...ff..‘.’f:’.".'?..’.'.’.‘...;.‘..';.' ..'_..‘.'.'._'.f...'.” 39,536
Rall\Vay farES reCEWable ........................ beer o aene aeae d : ..::» 26298
‘Accourits receivable. .. L L L et L A
" Accrued income..... ' oo ol fandie B g
Shon terrn Ioans....'.'.

Prepald expenses..
’ " Deferred tax assets
* Other current ASSes L L . N "9,049
Less allowance for doubtful gecounts "L LI e e M’(lﬁl)

:-2¢ Fixed assets for railway operatlons .1 548-292 ‘
AL FIX-Cd-aSSCtS for ferry SerViCCS R T T TP SO PP PP PFTTRUPTIL Al 556
412 FiXed assets for related. busmesses“ ......... -.-..-.-...-.-.-..=-.-.-..-.-.-.-.-.-..-.;-..-.-..-...:...:;;:.I ..... ‘. ...... 60 445
"'c Other refevant fixed assets /1125010 Jvn L ' 2 72,617
C62.Construction in. progress - w....aswisinn i 614251
“v: Investments and other aSSets. ..t ‘D64 943
-+ .« Stocks of affiliates..... ;
 Investment.in securities............ 521 0E RNy 1 b 950
. Long-term loans receivable.....oenieciisinninani a6 32,882
Long-term PIEPALI EXPEIISES ....eenvreeeereemrrrereesrsrnsaseressa e reersessesenggeennens 4,316

£ Deferred tax asSets ..........oooovovveoooooroceesresn oo B g T 79,845
Other investments and adVances........cccvccevreeeveveesvnee s e e e 13,252 17
Less allowance for doubtful accounts ..........cccooeceeveiiiniinenreneinereeen, (291)
ST Gy w bt s
BEENAS DA DIaD
\. ;' TOTAL ASSETS iy 2laLETS
O B e e e s PN PEUTR IR TR

Sy el
(Nott) Plg‘ures are indicated by dlscardmg fractlons of one mllllon yen. grove 10

. [P L
S YA PSR A

UL s e it G L st ey e

’ s . '
L) ' " i . AR
hy "o - [ P
DT . R SURUURPIUUR » Y S U PR LR PIPR LS E AU PR L PR
1
Do 2 v 'l_ﬂ/‘. ' [ELRR VA
N s e T Tt g e
"‘.l O g
\ . ) P
“ ' IJ(')T,‘ S, Ty vy



LIABILITIES e

Current liabilities: o 505,630
... Short-term BOITOWINGS ....cv.vurieriersrsiieiient ittt et w1 117,139
“Current’ pomon of long-term debt........cooiviiieirircece e 34 876
. Current portion of long-term payables for acquisition of railway properties .. - . 36,530
Current portion of long-term payables........c......ooovurvvvrvccconnirrinnns e sieraenen " 319
Other accounts payable ... i O Sy 147,882
Accrued EXPEIISES. . ... errvvsovvosssrnssssssssssrnerssressssosssossssssnsrssssssoenpyesigessivesennsssogons; 18,797
Accmed CONSUMPiON 1aXES ..ve.rvvccrsccneces e 3,474
Accmed INCOME tAX ..o eennes 15,065
Rallway'dép'os:ts FECEIVE. ...t e L e . 8,101
SDEPOSIES...ooc s e 12,162
Prepald railway fares recelved ............ et e e n st e aaeenan ; '330,463
 Advancés received ... ... e L LT roeepnioenee 53,894
Prepa:d INCOME TECRIVEA ... oo ety goenesfosesssssooses 2 371
"“Allowance for bonuSes....- e S et oee e ris 26,505
.Other current liabilities ..., . AT,

Long-term liabilities: . ... ... ... i can e o e l llrz: 924
. Bonds................. frefreemeserrrenseessrenersesrpesentesetnrateareessanenens evee e e A S e 249,981
' R.-jtxrement_allowa_nce,s, _for employees .....cc.ooeieeieenans f' 201' 188
Allowance for quake-proof reinforcement measures................i..0.i0 0 © 9,931
+Allowance for environment and safety measures ' St 7,426
Other long-term liabilities..........cooevveciiiie e, St et e 15,032
e TOTALLIABILITIES © 77 77 TN Teiesss

NET-ASSETS.. ... ....... . .. O T S SIS S U NP IO A

e '. ...... e e e . . "ﬁ,h,‘.‘i]f.?l‘.:,l‘ oL, -.'.".'J,:F-" £ !

Shareholders' equlty 525,316
_Common stock: L 100,000
“Capital surplus: T 55,000
CaPIAL TESEIVE ..iiiciirirrr st rae et s as e bess e sanasesnnneran 55,000
Retamedearnmgs o e e T e s 210,316
Retained earnings FESETVE 1.v1eervooversoeseeeesseesesessesssseeeoesesseseresseesoareseesseseeens 11 327

Other retained €amiNgs .......ccoceivierieieeie ettt eee e e e 358,989
Reserve for advanced depreciation of fixed assets ... 15,436

GNEIAL TESEIVE woeiieiiieeicee et s eae s s st s re e 260,000

Retained earnings carried forward...........ccocoovieiiieiiiie e, 83,553
Evaluation and exchange differences, etc.: 8,003
Evaluation difference on other securities..........ocooovioii e, 8,003
TOTAL NET ASSETS 533,320

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,151,875

(Mote) Figures are indicated by discarding fractions of one million yen.
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LR AR

STATEMENT OF INCOME ;

(For the period from April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)

* ., (million yen)

Railway operations
Opetating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income

Ferry services
Operating revenues - -
Operating expenses
Operating loss

Related businesses
‘Operating revenues
Operating expenses : -
Qperating income ‘

Operating income

NonFoperating income
Interest and dlvxdend income
Other income

Non-_operatmg expenses
Interest expenses
Other expenses.

Recurripg profit

':Extraordinary profits:
Proceeds from construction contract
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Others

.:Extraordinary expenses:
"> Loss on reduction entry of proceeds
from construction
Others :

Income before income tax .
Corporation inhabitant and enterprlse taxes'
Income taxes -deferred. I * . . 0 " :
Net income - : Viow -

847,176

749,958

403
544

18,229

6,341

31,714
_ 9,578
3,819

~ 31,076

15,926

»

I :
o
PR

97,218
141°°

11,388
108,966

36,787 . .
77,686 1.

45,112

47,003

75,795
33,640
(2,528)
44,683

(Note) anures are mdteated by dlscardmg fracnons of one mllllon yen.

[
o}
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Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
(From ‘April 1,:2006 to March.31, 2007) 0 « -5 =0l dten#

(Note) Figures are indicated-by discarding fractions.of.one million yen.:

I.  Notes on the matters concerning sugmﬁcant accounting pollcles. sl i G
.

PN ;::":.r;_:: F AN '.'|' L ":' S e : Pkl ,'Ji T 'A":J!‘ PO I AT I A f_r‘ VT
1. -i-..Basis a,nd method ofvaluanon ofa'ssets,i T N R AR P S I D R TR TR R P 3e

LI LI TR YRS TS TR SV A ORPAE
N Basis and method of valuation of marketable securities:
i

Tetre et ev s il wnon gt o
1) Stocks of sub51dlanes and afﬁhates At cost, determined by the moving average
(IR SR P M Ta s NN SN RO pooemethod e Mo | e I R A AR

TS ST U TR TERT 2% B S TS PLA N IR LY S v S LTS TT LI

i.) 4

2) Other marketable securities:

S prn eyl

J/.-‘1".ln!"44|,f;;; IELRAOr Lf
Those with market value: At market value, determined by market prices, etc. J
LA koG 2 T el uw g 88 of the- ¢lose- of  the ﬁscal Yyear (Revaluation
' o, i differences are all transferred directl v tomet assets.
Selling costs are determined - by : the- moving
average method.)
vl b e Tinnosok e oaner ot nony e b e LEA DDEY T wuaeageh

Sl Thoa.e without market valuen 7 Atcost,determined by the mmnng a,verage method

PRI BT 4 1 RS B S

~
ST

elage Ll Ll FLagN T e EARNN S Fie BLNLATY
(2) Ba51s and method of evaluation of inventories:
D o S Tt (J..’n O et s PSS Lot e ey J.-‘-l aitati, 10

bty Materlals and Supphes... i s 1At cost, determined by:the moving avetage method
- woonriieer T wresan L arhuie oo an (- L,..w DI ATIR S L o TR N T
2. Method ofdeprec;atlon offxed ASSELSH i 1T v gt e s G unie e

w

cone Ai)n,  Tangitle ﬁXQdJ@SS_e._tSE; SRL T S P el pN T ST B RGN 221 o
ety 2 L «% IO HA RN

Declining balance method; provided, however, that the replacement cost
method is applicable to,replacement assets foriraillway/serviees. o ;i i

b

(11) Intangible.fixed assets:; ;. » c i inet wusme s oni et L 0t e

T B N T TN N PRI PR T P (V) S (LN IR .

et Intanglble ﬁxed aSﬂets are, depreglated by‘ the -straight- llne metho :S_oftware
for internal use 1s amortized by the ﬁirgxgh},—hnﬁ) method -.on the estimated useful
hfe of internal use (five years)

SR Ve S PN B8 112 I CR R ST OE N adTe Now L b e e s T
) Long-term prepaid expenses o .‘,t.; SN E e L
- Do el e e e el Lunl il vy o

Long- -term prepaid: -expenses are written- off in equal; amounts. ,: .-
3. _Method of treatment of deferred assets;. - - . slin o o

Bond issuing expenses are all.treated-as expenses upon payment thereof.  + -
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4,

o cenditt Booebihoons T wd” e

Basis for accountmg for allowances and accrued liabilities:

(1) < Allowarice for doubtful accounts: » o0 2w i 7,

(3)

ty
Ao

@

)

(2) -

To meet losses from' loan default, the Company sets aside an estimated 'uncollectible
amount, by taking into consideration the actual loss rate in respect of general credits
and the individual possibilities of collectioniin respect of specific ‘claims, such as
probable non-performing credits.
DLV RPRAPE IV N (St T RE IS A STl (T LIS PUR
Allowance for bonuses
oot e Lo ey S et T s puliatt e e
To meet the payment of bonuses to employees, the Company sets aside an estimated
amount of bonuses to be paid for each current fiscal year.
SN ETDIS IR LML PO PO o
Retirement allowances for employees
: O TIPS SO SIHL LA i
To meet the payment ‘of retirement beneﬁts to employees the Company provides an
amount, based-on’ estimated -retlrement.ueneﬁt obligations as of the close of each
current fiscal year: + © . <o Dnoad

Needl f)' Tiy

The difference of ¥301 642 mllllon upon the change of accounting standards for
sremployee -retirement benefits is' treated-as expenses,iand-i$ ‘amortized on a straight-
line basis for a period of 10 years. _
ety i NS L I TR o T
Actuarial differences are treated as expenses from the fiscal year next followmg the
“fiscal -year when such differences 6céur;and are amortized-ox 4 straighr-‘me basis for
a specific period of years (10 years) not exceeding the average remammg years of

service of employees when such differences-occur./t -1 iu i ol

Prior service cost is amortized as an extraordinary éxpense-in 2 kimp‘sum in the fiscal
year the Company incurs such cost.
LT ! . ILe L e S [ A O T '. 1

- . L

Allowance for quake-proof reinforcernésit medsures i a7

To meet the payment for expenses, including removal‘and fesioration ¢osts, relating to
quake-proof reinforcement works of the columns of its elevated bridges of the
‘Shinkansen' Line, the Company proudes an- .amount of- ex,;enses reasonably estimated
at the close of each current fiscal'yeary' < “' A A LA

The quake-proof reinforcement works are planned to be completed no later than the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2009, by taking-ihto consideration ihat the columns of
the elevated bridges of the Joetsu Shinkansen Line were damaged by the Niigata

Chuetsu Earthquake that took place on Q¢tober 23,:2004.
No amount of expenses that cannot reasonably be estimated ai present is provided.

Allowance for environment and safety measiires
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' . . . v L . . L AR
e ‘4'- by dinnt e CrAa e Ry i TN F O A I IR AT R TR R f'\' [

.«. Toumeet the. payment for éxpenses ofrdisposal'of PCB and other wastes, the Company
provides an amount-ofi-expenses :reasonably estimated at .the'close-of each’current
fiscal year. The estimated amount is calculated based on the unit cost publicized by
Japan Environment Safety Co., Ltd. (JESCO). No amount.of expenses'of-disposal’
that cannot reasonably be estimated at present is provided.

r
....

5. Accounting treatment of lease transactions:
ORI T 1S ) L U AR UL SN DL ST SRRV T A RS LA FINSRTIRIPA L oo
.+ . With:regdrd to;ithe treatment :of ﬁnance lease itransactions ‘other -than-those ini:which
., ownership, of leased ‘property-is considered to bé transferred tosbotrdwers, the' method
for regularlease transaétions applies’similarly- - "=, 2rfer wrear g e

6.1 + . . Adcounting treatment of proceeds from.censtruction contract:w.s ~ 3 orluiie o/

For the purpose of construction to elevate railway tracks and other:works' for-its railway
re joperations, the Company receives from local muniéipal éntities:contributions. to pay for
part of such construction. An amount equivalent to such contributions is deducted
directly from acquisition costs of the fixed assets:so:actuired upon the. completion of
such construction.
ety LI
” i the consohdated statement of income, the Compaﬁy" accbﬁ;i;cs ﬁ;r such contributions
’ urecewed for Construction as an extraordinary profit and such amount directly deducted
from;acquisition costs of the fixed assets, as a loss on reductlon _entry of proceeds from
conslructlon as an extraordinary expense.

YRR RN TN AP B
7. ;tzligc\_cqu_m‘mg treatment of consumption taxes: arite gL
A
g 'Smn‘f)’uon taxes are excluded from each account subject 16 #ach taxes.
:!’}:”' o o (, . ey .".J.'{ '_){ ey ruicl
8. Changes in the important matters forming the baSIS of preparatlon of financial
statements: srpn L esonmen b7

RV (JJ (
(1, Accountmg Standard for Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance Sheet:

eriy) i birle U Catatd L whd
As from the fiscal. year Lmder rev1ew the "Accountmg Standard for Presentanon of.
Net Assets n the Balance ‘Sheét" (the Accountmg Standards Board of J apan ("ASBJ ")
Corporate Accountmg Standard No.5, December 9, 2005) and the "Implementatlon
Guidance on the Accounting'Standard for Presentation of Net’ Assets'in' the Balance
. - Sheet"™ (ASBI-.,Gorporate rAccounting Standard Implementation Guidance: No.8§,!

.December 9,2005).are applicable.

11J

a ) fow ) v o i . I

N .t 4 4

- The amount equwalent to the previous total sharehdlders eqmty is ¥533 320 mllhon '
(2) Accounting Standard for ?inéii‘fc'ial Instruments:
:As.' from ‘the fiscal year under review, the "AE‘ebuﬁiing Standard for Financial

Instruments” (ASBJ Corporate Accounting Standard No.10, amended on August 11,
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2006) 1s applicable. Consequently, ¥18 million of bond discount that accrued upon
- -, the issuance-of the 12th Bonds:(on July 28, 2006) and the 13th-Bonds.(on February 19,

- 2007) was deducted d1rectly from- the amount of-the'Bonds.- TERRC VI

FIIR NS N AT TR S S R TTTL I L A LA L S
IL.. Notes to balance sheet,etcy /7 /(- D L et D e e g
SRy e ; < E B

1. Assets pledged
AL TV SN U 1 TN ST AT
Pursuant to Article 7 of the Supplementary Prov1sxons to the Law to Amend Pan of the
", +Law Concerning. Passenger.- Railway : Companies: and.:the --Japan!-Freight Railway
.o+ Company. (2001, Law No:.61).0of Japan,-the  éntire property-ofithe-Company-is subject to
statutory preferential rights for the security of all bonds-(¥175;000 miliion).. -

2. Accumulated depreciation-of tangible fixed assets:: -~ - " rvro 2 ¥2,360,472 million

3....»Accumulated contributions for construction:directly deducted « % o e Lo
«from acqulsnlon costs of fixed assets:, « ' ccuone e o e . ¥501,302 million

T N L S 07 M S SNV N LR NP U
4. Total amountlofﬁxedasqetq by.item:.: s :'l-"- T N S R P
Tangtl?lle ﬁxed asse}e D e e e ¥1 664ﬂ_9351 mllllon
AP iLand;,, ;500 o o RIS PO SR P ¥64’ ,828imillion
T Buildings o T dai ,¥114 899 million
Structures SRS -.I‘¥6flST§74 lmllllDl’l
Rolling stock DUl A0 e i i Y74, 68 million
Ty ,chers RTINS X M E B TP RSN :;'7¥.8_5?.J3§8‘.“}i11i0n
Intangible fixed assets ¥16,959 million
D T e LY S S TRV P L S S SR B L LN e TR R H S T
5. Guarantees of loans: PR

(million yen)

LR TR L L R G - PN L ROV T IR TINHE MR TRE PR N I R
A T L A IO F R § OO I P f.r a7 Detallsongaranteed

Guarantee Guarantee amount obllgauons

Kyoto Statlon Bu1ld1ng Development Co ' ! ': 16,'1(8fo r“ Commltment to guarantee
Lid!” S ‘.lor loans from ﬁnanc1al

R R T B

Hbtel Granvia Okayama Co:; Ltd. L[~ re2,264...: | Guarantee for ioans from
-7, s - | financial institutions

JR. West Japan Hotel Development, Co 78 Guarantee for the balance
1.td. and 4 other companies ~ * - D oot Lo uofiprépaid cards dssued
Total 23,529,
6.  Long-term receivables from affiliates: - ‘  ¥33,045 million
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7.  Short-term receivables from affiliates: | . _ - ¥30,343 million

8. Long-term payables to affilidtes:- “-u° . coescdgrel s oL (¥4521] mllllon
e TLt PP LA R S (SR ST AN

9.  Short-term payables to affiliates: ¥225,682 million

10 Matters concermng the traih accndent on the Fukuchlyama Lme UL

+ s N ' + ) ,
! oLl . .- e . AT NP "'J“ii ol

Expenses resultmg from the train acmdent on the Fukuchlyama Lite, 'mc]:udlng
compensation, are anticipated. However, it is difficult to reasonably estimate the
amount thereof at present.

T AR LU T

III. Notes to statement of income

T PR S S AP S T TLLA

1.““Operating revenues: CRER T I0vg65 810 million
L .o ‘!r‘:“:',‘ IV B L 'f.sair)‘."..'..,' Wk

2. Operating expenses:  Delivery expenses and cost of sales: ¥558,053 million
N0 N ,.'--. A AR FERVIRRIEE LN TR APy B

Railway operations ¥557,637 million

T Lty e B B R LA .

Ferry servnces’ ' _ . l) ¥397 million
O ame ey a it

Related busmesses ' 1 e ¥18 million

e N il

Selling, general and adminictrative expenses; ., ,:¥77,107 million

S Railway operations “- " ¥73.521 million
NoTe Ferry services “ U 47 million
B Related busihesses '~ * 7" ¥3,538 million

) \ :‘ General tax: 0 ) " ¥28,149 million

TR A Depreciation expé‘riéé:;: e ¥93,533 million

3. Transactions with affiliates: ST e e i e G
, . Operating revenues: . . . .. . | ¥34 669 mllllon
Operating exoenses:, ... §.:.., .3« . . ¥180,008 million

b el Transactions other than ordinary businéss: - - *¥115,055 million

4. Losson 1mpa1rrnent of fixed assets:

For the purpose of calculation of loss on impairment of ﬂxed assets, the Company
groups together the fixed assets of the railway operations, ferry services, sales of goods
and food services and other businesses, whose incomes and expenses are accounted for
constantly, by such business category, and groups together the fixed assets of real estate
business, assets determined for abolition and idle assets separately. Accordingly, as a
result of a decline in land prices, the book value of the fixed assets determined for
abolition was decreased to a recoverable value and the decreased amount was reported
as "others" (¥242 million) under "extraordinary expenses".
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" Fixed assets determined for abolition
~Lot: of  residence for the employees owned by. the:” . -

Company in Hiroshima City: ¥242 million
S R . Coe

The recoverable value of the asset-group was measured by the net sales value and
calcutated based on the appralsed value of land facmg a thoroughfare for tax assessment
CLPWPOSEs. o r Tl e s e e s Ce ‘

R P .
. . . i PR - : i .t + ' LR .
A UM A L A : . B N VR A

IV.  Notes to tax effect accounting

1. Principal details of deferred tax assets
Allowance for bonuses ¥10.784 million
Accrued social insurance contrlbutlons ¥1,384 million

¥1 363 million

Accrued enterpﬁse taxes '

\(_nJ [

e Retlremcnt allowance for employee's i _‘ ‘ ¥81,863 million
) * Allowance for quake-proof rcmforcem.ent

foees T measures - ¥4,041 million

Lt ST Allowancé for environment and safcly '
. ,0l, .- measures Sy ¥3,021 million
i oy Others o ¥12,473 million
Subtotal of deferred tax assets, | ¥114,933 million
— ~Valuation reserve R R . (¥5,099 million)
‘ Total deferred tax assets lr.- ¥109,833 million

2. Principal details of deferred tax liabilities

B Evaluation difference on other securities ' (¥5,491 million)
- ‘Reserve for advanced depreciation 6f -~ -
fixed assets .- | R (¥10,590 million)
Total deferred tax liabilities (¥16,081 million)
3. Deferred tax assets — net . R ¥93,752 mi,llion.
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V. Notes to fixed assets used on lease

In addition to the fixed asseéts:listéd.in the balance sheet;.part of office equipment is
used pursuant to finance lease agreements in which ownership of leased property shall not be

transferred to thie Company:

1. Amount equivalent to the acquisition prices of leased property at

the end of the fiscal year under review:

¥2,069 million ,
A B LN \ L

2. Amount equivalent to the accumulated depreciation of leased

property at the end of the fiscal year,under review:

¥1,426 million

3. Amount equivalent to the balance of uneamned rent of leased

. property at the end of the fiscal year under review:
' 1 LIS T {1

s oS e D Do Ty

VI. Note to information perishare, ;- "

¥643 million

1. Net assets per share g ful ¥266,660.13

(8] B g

PR T -"]lLlJi'z.";

2. Net mcome per share:c: . -, ¥22,341.69
" ) s plniula
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RGNS TNDPPFNDTNT AU")ITORS' REPORTT crd e eithon
SRR SN e B R e TRt T b LIS AN Ae (L FO

cern e Y :May 110;2007.

The Board of Directors :

Weést' Japan Railway Company
N ST TP ST S C R 0 Jixu TR
Emst ‘& Young ShinNihon -4 7 e
Cee o Lenn e b sermsent ougn of Inolo i nuen
I R R B (PRI FANEE R s LEFSY.
Kenu Takevama _(seal)

Specified and Executive Partner
Certified:Publi¢"Accountant™ - ¢

Takayuki Nishida . .. - (seal)
Specified and Execunve Partner
Certified Public’Accotintant-

Koichi Noda (seal)
Specified and Executive Partner
Certified Public Accountant

Yutaka Matsumura (seal)
Specified and Executive Partner
Certified Public Accountant

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of income,
the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders' equity, etc. and the notes to
consclidated financial statements of West Japan Railway Company (the "Company"),
applicable to its consolidated fiscal year from April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007 pursuant to
Article 444, paragraph 4 of the Corporation Law of Japan. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. OQur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements from an independent
standpoint.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
Japan. Those standards require us to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
policies and methods of application thereof employed by management and estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We are of the opinion that the above consolidated financial statements present

properly the financial position and profit and loss of the corporate group comprised of West
Japan Railway Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for the period related to the
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consolidated financial statements in all matenal respects m Lonformlty with the corporate
accounting standards.generally acceptéd in Japan.f* . .ot Ly LTt

We have no financial interest in the Company whxch is required to be dlSClOSGd under
the provisions:of the Certified: Pubhc Accountants Law AR A R L e
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" AUDITORS' REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. -

RN A IS TR S T T ST SOV T S PF S S P T T R

We, the Board of Corporate Audltors o,f' the Company, ‘based; on the audit-report
prepared by each Corporate Auditor on the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated
siatement of income, the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders' equity, etc. and
the notes to consolidated financial statements; for the 20th fiscal year from April 1, 2006 to

March 31, 2007, prepared this audit report upon deliberation and hereby report as follows:

1.  Method of Audit by the Corporate Auditors and the Board of Corporate Auditors and the
Particulars thereof:

The Board of Corporate Auditors determined the audit policy, audit plans, etc. and
received from each Corporate Auditor reports on the state of his performance of audits and
the results thereof.

Each Corporate Auditor, in accordance with the audit policy, audit plans, etc., as
determined by the Board of Corporate Auditors, received from Directors, employees, etc.
reports on the consolidated financial statements and demanded their explanations whenever
nccessary.  We also monitored and verified whether the Account Auditors had maintained
an independent position and conducted adequate audits, and received from the Account
Auditors reports on the state of performance of their duties and demanded their explanations
whenever necessary. In addition, we received from the Account Auditors a notice that the
"systems to secure adequate performance of duties" (as listed in the items of Article 159 of
the Corporate Accounting Regulations) had been established in accordance with the
"Standard for Quality Control Concerning Audits" (the Accounting Standards Board of Japan,
October 28, 2005) and demanded their explanations whenever necessary. In accordance
with such methods, we investigated the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year
under review.

2. Results of Audit:

We are of the opinton that the method and results of the audit made by the Account
Auditors, Ernst & Young ShinNihon, are proper.
May 14, 2007

The Board of Corporate Auditors
West Japan Railway Company

Noboru Koide (seal)
Full-time Corporate Auditor

Tsutomu Iwasaki (seal)
Full-time Corporate Auditor
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(External Corporate Auditor)
L P R R SO R L

IR I Kazuo Yoshida (seal)
External Corporate Auditor
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Ikuo Uno (seal)
- e PR . s . -
~ o weus ) - External Corporate Auditor
° . i " Y 3
S SR ST S AR R
PRSI S AR
v t. ¥ r ] “ e
e ) i _ P e
f . " T
[SPAES S I 6.0
LIGHRR [ - =
- S
’ -
PTL It PP T NG WX o
B P | O RIS A P
[ €2 ey LA :
. SRR [T P
A S A A T
B T TY Tt Lot Y OP S L PR L IR ST A P PR+ L ROt A LT S P -
ST SN (U3 LAY TR R i L S SRR L SRRV LR ¢ o L R L PR SO APV R
. . v . BERY S [ ) L ; . TN L
SO 4 e L LT STEE TR S ] LT A EP TR 1D LRSS 0: [H BFAUS Ui shelis
o % et T ot b e s - T IR SR L LA LY B
SRV P30 10 T RT PRIV ET S L R P T PO DA A S Prot® g, e anat 1300 ol wey e
ey el . . S T T U X
ETRT O PO T IR VECH C (N SRS PR o0 B TRFS2 {1 UNDPIOS T SR e R AR M
v e . ; R . | . T ey i .y
ISV F S SRR S NS IV NS 1) PRI SN LU A S B o S S PP e I IV DL Pols IV A i B OL N Y
; . : b T . L e . 't . 5 N
- R T RE TSP PR St 15 ¢ 7 DE DDA PRI PR ST T ¢ VRN | M SUCA PR AR SN I T EO VLSV P P
U 43 6 L F L T S L R L RS 1 S P A B AN S AL AT
M o PRI - P i el g eager b e oage ' N e - X}
[SETRIL SV IR ST SURE SCIPRE VR L 51 SR SO TTY S APDRRARE Y PRV IV ARUL 5 B PR ML AP O P | PR TV TR Wl e
N ' . P o . - ! . N
R S IR SRS o 1 LT SRAT LA SR ISP LOLT S ¥) VIR VY AP N : ;
B : ; - . * . " P ' . : 7
Seeer et g eipbeadie nroweit e e 0 e e el
' * H i ' e Iy PRI . . -
o M o [ L O B S VA R A LI SPIRLAY VL DU RS A1 VA bt L LY
; ! oy e AT e, P R A . .. . P
N BT A RS SE LN o LOVORAS NS SCINTRLFAs B4 AR LSS R LI “ e : :
v . ' B . - - . ek . P
S L S P RS T S Y NS A LP NS OF IRV I¥47 N EE S PR S AN Lt o
} i o S . . LI .o . ' Lo
. u P NPT £ 71 B A T L N el Foelr e e LI [ I PP N
. . - - " H ' i . . - *
RS LSTTE CUC RS e ) PN PP A LTI S R A
- . Co : A SRR IO S O BN k .
t i L] . .
! v T T T I PR .
+ - . I . N »} - . .

_47-



 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

I May 10, 2007
4 ! ~,-':.'-I;r. o 5
The Board of Directors
West Japan Railway Company
" Errist & Young ShinNihon
Kenji Takeyama (seal)

Specified and Executive Partner
Certified Public Accountant

Takayuki Nishida {seal)
Specified and Executive Partner
Certified Public Accountant

Koichi Noda {seal)
Specified and Executive Partner
Certified Public Accountant

Yutaka Matsumura (seal)
Specified and Executive Partner
Certified Public Accountant

We have audited the balance sheet, the statement of income, the statement of changes
in shareholders’ equity, etc. and the notes to non-consolidated financial statements, and the
supplementary financial schedules of West Japan Railway Company (the "Company"),
applicable to its 20th fiscal year from April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007 pursuant to Article
436, paragraph 2, item 1 of the Corporation Law of Japan. These financial statements and
the supplementary financial schedules are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and the
supplementary financial schedules from an independent standpoint.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
Japan. Those standards require us to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements and the supplementary financial schedules are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting policies and methods of application thereof employed by
management and estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements and the supplementary financial schedules. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We are of the opinion that the above financial statements and the supplementary

financial schedules present properly the financial position and profit and loss for the period
related to the financial statements and the supplementary financial schedules in all material
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respects in conformity with the corporate accounting standards generally accepted in Japan.
|
|

the provisions of the Certified: Public Accountants. Law. ~i. .,
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" AUDITORS' REPORT

Y. L . i : v ) L i o MU RIS ’_of'

We, the Board of Corporate Auditors:of the.Company,.based on:the-audit: report
prepared by each Corporate Auditor on the performance by the Directors of their duties
during the 20th fiscal year from April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007, prepared this audit report
upon deliberation and hereby report as follows: " { -

1. Method of Audit by the Corporate Auditors and the Board of Corporate Auditors and the
Particulars thereof:

The Board of Corporate Auditors determined the audit policy, audit plans, etc. and
received from each Corporate Auditor reports on the state of his performance of audits and
the results thereof.

Each Corporate Auditor, pursuant to the rules of audits by Corporate Auditors
determined by the Board of Corporate Auditors and in accordance with the audit policy, audit
plans, etc., maintained constant communication with the Directors, internal audit divisions
and other employees, etc. in an effort to collect information and improve the environment for
auditing, attended meetings of the Board of Directors and other important meetings, received
from the Directors and employees, etc., reports on the state of performance of their duties,
demanded their explanations whenever necessary, inspected important decision documents,
etc., and made investigation into the state of activities and property at the head office and
principal business offices of the Company. We also monitored and verified the details of
the resolutions of the Board of Directors for establishing systems to secure that the
performance by the Directors of their duties will comply with laws or ordinances and the
Articles of Incorporation and such other systems provided for in Article 100, paragraphs 1
and 3 of the Regulations to Enforce the Corporation Law of Japan as necessary to secure the
adequacy of business of joint-stock corporations, as well as the status of the systems (internal
control systems) established pursuant to such resolutions. With regard to its subsidiaries,
we maintained constant communication and exchanged information with the directors,
corporate auditors, etc. thereof and required the subsidiaries to render reports on their
business operations and made investigation into the state of their activities and property
whenever necessary. In accordance with such methods, we investigated the business report
and its supplementary schedules for the fiscal year under review.

We also monitored and verified whether the Account Auditors had maintained an
independent position and conducted adequate audits, and received from the Account Auditors
reports on the state of performance of their duties and demanded their explanations whenever
necessary. In addition, we received from the Account Auditors a notice that the "systems to
secure adequate performance of duties" (as listed in the iterns of Article 159 of the Corporate
Accounting Regulations) had been established in accordance with the "Standard for Quality
Control Concerning Audits" (the Accounting Standards Board of Japan, October 28, 2005)
and demanded their explanations whenever necessary. In accordance with such methods,
we investigated the balance sheet, the statement of income, the statement of changes in
shareholders' equity, etc. and the notes to non-consolidated financial statements, and the

supﬂrtqry cial schedules for the fiscal year under review.,
LR
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2. Results of Audit:
(1) Results of audit of the business report, etc.:
We are of the opinion:

(i) That the business report and its supplementary schedules fairly presents the staie of
the Company in accordance with laws or ordinances and the Articles of
Incorporation;

(i) That in connection with the performance by the Directors of their duties, no
dishonest act or material fact of violation of laws or ordinances or the Articles of
Incorporation exists; and

(111) That the details of the resolutions of the Board of Directors on internal control
systems are proper and that the performance by the Directors of their duties
concerning such internal control systems contains nothing to be pointed out.

(2) Results of audit of the financial statements and the supplementary financial schedules:

We are of the opinion that the method and results of the audit made by the Account
Auditors, Ernst & Young ShinNihon, are proper.

May 14, 2007

The Board of Corporate Auditors
West Japan Railway Company

Noboru Koide (seal)
Full-time Corporate Auditor

Tsutomu Iwasaki (seal)
Full-time Corporate Auditor
(External Corporate Auditor)

Kazuo Yoshida (seal)
External Corporate Auditer

Ikuo Uno (seal)
External Corporate Auditor

END

-5] -



